SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED .
Regd. Off.:- A-7, 18T FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017

CIN:U74889DL1977P1LCO08B485 Website- www. hotelmetdethi.com
PHONE # (91 11) 41515250 e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 48th Annual General Mesting of the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited will be
held through Video Conferencing ("VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means {"OAVM"} , on Monday 15th September,
2025 at 11.3C A.m. via Z0om meetings link
https://us05web.zoom. us/i837 15155074 ?pwd=DivAIODrg8THsZpbaF Xy T5bePThooU. 4 in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companigs Act, 2013 read with MCA General Circular No.08,2024, 09/2023,
1072022, 02/2022, No. 02/2021, 20/2020, 14/2020 and 17/2020 dated 16th Seplember,2024, 25th September,
2023, 28th December, 2022, 5th May, 2022, 13th January, 2021, 5th May, 2020, 8th April, 2020 and 13th
April, 2020 respectively, to transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt :
3. The Audited Financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025,
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2025, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.and in this regard, pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(a) “RESQLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors therecn laid before this meeting, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.”

(b) "RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 and the report of Auditors thereon {aid before this meeting, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vipul Gupta (DIN-00204638) , who retires by rotation and being eiigible,
offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vipul Gupta
{DIN-00204638), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To ratify the appointment of auditors of the Company, and to fix their remuneration and to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution thereof:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 138,and other applicabie provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder, pursuant to the resolution passed by members at the 45th AGM heid on
14th September, 2022, subject to ratification at every AGM approved the appaintment of M/s Anil Sood &
AssociatescChartered  Accountant (firm registration no. 004985 N) having Registered office at S-
316,Greater Kailash-1, New Delhi-110048, as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office till the 50th
Annual General Meeting , be and is hereby ratified and that the Beard of Directors be and are hereby
authorized to fix the remuneration payable to them for the financial year ending March 31, 2028."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. RE- APPOINTMENT OF MR. KAVEEN GUPTA (DIN-00204605) AS AN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY AND FIXATION OF HIS SALARY.

To Consider and if though fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an
SPECIAL RESOLUTION.

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the approval of the shareholders, and in accordance with the provisions of
section 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies act 2013 and the rules made
thereunder (inciuding any statutery modification or re-enaciment thereof} read with schedule- V of the
Companies act 2013 and pursuant to the Articles of association of the company, Mr. Kaveen Gupta (DIN-
00204805) be and is hereby re-appointed as Executive Director for the Period of 4.5 years w.e.f. 1st Aprif
2025 to 30th September 2029,0n a salary of Rs. 3,25,000/- p.m with an increase of 10% every year, with
following perquisites and allowances:
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SALARY

Basic salary Rs 3,25,000/- (Rupees three Lacs twenty five thousand only) per month from st April 2025 to

30th September 2029, with an increase of 10% every year, besides following perquisites and allowances:-

PERQUISITES & ALLOWANCES

In addition to the salary payable he shall be entitled to the following perquisites and allowances which will be

subject to a maximum of 100% of his annual salary.

a) House Rent Allowance or Leased accommendation up to a limit Rs, 50,000C/- per month.

b) Reimbursement of Medical expenses actually incurred for self and family, restricted to one month's
salary in a year or three month's salary over a period of three year.

¢} Free telephene facility at residence. All personal fong distance calls shall be billed by the Company.

d) Use of Company's Car and driver for official worik.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadeguacy of profits in any financial year during the
currency of his tenure as Executive Director, remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other
allowances, shall be in accordance with the ceiling prescribed in section Il of the part i of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification thereof.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized fo amend and very from
time to time the remuneration (with in the prescribe fimit as per the companies act 2013 and other applicable
provisions if any) during the tenure of the appointment in such mannar as may be agreed to between fhe
Board of Directors and Mr. Kaveen Gupta." :

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vipul Gupta (having Din-00204638) /Mrs. Shee! Gupta (having DIN-
00218219) Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to Sign the varicus B« Form as may be
necessary to file with Registrar of Company NCT of Delhi and Haryana in this regard.”

S INCREASE IN THE SALARY OF MR. VIPUL GUPTA (DIN-00204638) AN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR QE
THE COMPANY.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the foliowing resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Subject to the approval of the shareholders and pursuant to the provisions of Section
198, 197, 188, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the ruies made
there under (including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment therecf for the time keing in force), read
with Schedule "V of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the Articles of association of the company
and subject to such other approvals as may be necessary, consent of the members of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to revision of salary, by way of increase in the salary payable to Mr. Vipul Gupta {Din-
00204638), Executive Director of the Company from Rs. 2,25,000/- to Rs, 3,25,000/- along with an increase
of 10% every year with effect from 1st April, 2025 tilt the remaining tenure up to 30/09/2028. Details of the
revised salary, allowance and perquisites are as under:

SALARY
Basic salary 3,25,000/- (Rupees three Lacs twenty five thousand only) per month from 1st April, 2025 till the
remaining tenure up fo 30/09/2028 with an increase of 10% every year, besides following perquisites and
allowances:-
PERQUISITES & ALLOWANCES
In additien to the salary payable he shall be entitied to the foliowing perquisites and atlowances which will be
subject to a maximum of 100% of his annual salary.
a) House Rent allowance or Leased accommodation up to a lmit Rs.75,000 per month.
b) Reimbursement of Medical expenses actually incurred for self and family, restricted to one month's
salary in a year or three month's salary over a period of three year.
¢) Free telephone facility at residence. All personal fong distance calls shall be billed by the Company.

d) Use of Company's Car and driver for official work."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the
currency of his fenure as Executive Director, remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other
allowances, shall be in accordance with the ceiling prescribed in section |l of the part Il of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 or any statutery modification thereof.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of directors be and is hereby authorized to amend and very from time
to time the remuneration (with in the prescribe fimit as per the companies act 2013 and other applicable
provisions if any) during the tenure of the appointment in such manner as may be agreed to between the
Board of Directors and Mr. Vipul Gupta.” 3%
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kaveen Gupta (having Din-00204605) /Mrs. Sheel Gupta (having DIN-
00218219) Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to Sign the various E- Form as may be
necessary to file with Registrar of Company NCT of Delhi and Haryana in this regard.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Sdl-
{Neha Rajput)

Place : New Delhi Company Secretary

Dated : 01/08/2025 (Membership No.-A-26116)
NOTES :-

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”} has vide its circufar dated 18th September,2024, 25th September, 2023, 28th

December, 2622, May &th, 2022, December 14th, 2021, December 8th, 2021, January 13th, 2021, May 5, 2020 read
with circilars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of
the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at 2 common
venue, In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’), and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being held through VC / OAVIM.

. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, & Member entitied to attend and vote at the AGM is entitied to appoint a proxy to

attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held
pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facitity for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send a scanned
cerdified copy of the board resclution {pdffipeg format) authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf
at the Meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent by email through its registered email address to
sunairhotels@gmait.com,

Members sesking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested o
write to the Company on or before AGM through email on sunairhotels@gmail.com,

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars Nolice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent
through electronic mode o those Members whose email addresses are found by the Company/directors, Although the
physical copies of the financial statements for the financial year 31.03.2025 is also being sent by courier to al the
members specifying the detail of scheduled AGM by VC ! OAVM. Members may nole that the notice and Annual Report
2024-25 will also be available on the Company's website www hotelmatdeihi.com. Further the link will be available on
the website of the company at www.hotelmetdethi.com shortly and also wili be sent on the email ids/addresses of the
shareholders whose addresses are available.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts concerning the business under
Item No. 4 and 5 of the notice are annexed with the notice along with the relevent details.

Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the guorum under
Section 103 of the Act.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

In case of joint holder atiending the Meeting, whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names will be
entitled to vote,

To provide the fair chance to participate in the AGM by VC / OAVM, Members are advised fo notify the Company their
email ids / change in email ids and Phone No's and any change in address to the company as soon as possible.

The Meeting shall be deemed to be held at the Registered office of the Company at A-7, 1st Floor, Geetanjali Enclave,
New Dethi-110017.

Members can send their requests, if any, to sunairhotels@gmait.com.

Voting if demanded by the members will be online at the emait address of the company during the meeting.

Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall open 15 minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM.

Further shareholders will be required to switch on the video facility and use Internet connection with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the Meeting.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting during the meeting means may be addressed o Sunair Hotels
Limited and send an email to sunairhotels@gmail.com and further can call on 011-41515250 other details wiil be posted
on www.hoteimetdelhi.com.

Shareholders can update their mobile numbers and e-mail IDs (which may be used for sending future
communication{s)} by writing to sunairhotels@gmail.com. '%
L



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off.:- A-7, 1ST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENY PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

The following explanatory statements, as required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, set out all material
facts relating to the business under item Nos. 4 and 5 mentioned in the accompanying Notice.

item No- 4

The Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 22th January 2025 | on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee at their meeting proposed the name of Mr. Kaveen Gupta as Executive Director for the
Pericd of 4.5 years Le. with effect from st April 2025 to 30th September 2029 subject to the approval of
shareholders and in accordance with the provisions of section 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies act 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof) read with schedule- V of the Companies act 2013 and pursuant to the Articles of association of the
Company,on the remuneration given in the body of resolution.Mr, Kaveen Gupta (DIN-00204605) has rich and vast
experience of more than 33 years in the field of business, and he is MBA by qualification.

His remuneration is within limits set out according to the provisions of the Companies act 2013 and the rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with schedule- V of the Companies act
2013.

The Director recommended the passing of resolution given in item no. 4 of the Notice as an ordinary Resclution.

The above may also be treated as an abstract of the main terms and conditions of the appoinfment of Mr. Kaveen
Gupta as an executive Director as per Companies Act 2013,

Mrs. Sheel Gupta ,Mr. Vipul Gupta, and Mr. Kaveen Gupta are interested in passing of the resolution.

item No-5

Mr. Vipul Gupta was reappointed as Executive Director in Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th
September, 2024, for the Period of 4.5 years l.e. with effect from 01.04.2024 to 30.09 2028 on a salary of Rs.
2,25,000/- per month, with increase of 10% every year. The Board, based on the performance evaluation and
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers that the experience and contribution of Mr.
Vipul Gupta, towards the company and his continues association with the company has been remain beneficial for
the Company. Further He has been carrying out various respensibilities of the company as Fxecutive Director and
devotes whole time attention to the management of the affairs of the Company and exercises powers under the
supervision and superintendence of the Board of the Company.in view of the same and fo praise his efforts and his
continues association with the company, # is proposed to increase his remuneration for the balance tenure of his
appointment, In the meeting of Board of Directors held on 22nd January 2025 on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee it has been proposed to increase his salary from Rs. 2,25,000/- to Rs. 3,25,000/-
along with an increase of 10% every year with effect from 01/04/2025 tiff the remaining tenure up to 30/0%/2028
besides aliowances and perguisites as set out in the resolution given in item no. 5 of the Notice.

His remuneration is within limits set out according to the provisions of the Companies act 2013 and the rules mads
thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with schedule- V of the Companies act
2013.

The Director recommended the passing of resolution given in item no. 5 of the Notice as an ordinary Resolution.
The above may also be treated as an abstract of the main terms and conditions of the appointment of Mr. Vipul
Gupta as an executive Director persuant to the provisions of Companies Act 2013.

Mrs. Sheel Gupta Mr. Vipui Gupta, and Mr. Kaveen Gupta are interested in passing of the resolution.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

4 /-

Place : New Delhi H (Neha Rajput)
Dated : 01/08/2025 Company Secretary
{(Membership No.-A-26116)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
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Details of Directors Seeking Appointment / Re-appointment al the Annual General Meeling

ITEMNO: 4&5

Name of Director

Mr. Vipul Gupta

Mr. Kaveen Gupta

PAN no. AACPGB452E AACPGB454C
Date of Birth 27/12/1868 26/05/1985
Date of Appointment 10/09/1893 25/08/1984
Qualification MBA {(USA) MBA

Experience in functional area

Having experience about 31 years

Having experience ahout 33 years

Director in other Company™ Excluding
Sunair Hotels Limited

Sun Aero Limited

Columbia Trading Co. Lid.
Fushpanjali Trexim (P} Lid.
Unigue Lifestyle(P) Limited

Sun Aerc Limited
Columbia Trading Co. Lid.
Pushpanjali Trexim (P) Lid.

Membership in various committees In other,
Board excluding Sunair Hotels Limited

Nil Nil
Chairmanship in the Committees of other
Boards None None
No. of shares held in the Company as|8,437,080 8,736,310

registered holder,

Detail of Remuneration last Drawn il
31.03.2025

Rs 2,25,000/- P.m.

Rs 2,25,000/- P.m.

Relationship with cther Directors and KMP

Mrs. Sheel Gupta —Mother

Mrs. Shee! Gupta —Mother

Mr. Kaveen Gupta ~Brother

Mr. Vipul Gupta ~Brother

Nurmber of Board Meeting Allended during
the year

9
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BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Sef |-

{Neha Rajput)
Company Secretary
(Membership No.-A-26116}

Place : New Dethi
Dated : 01/08/2025



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
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To,

The Members

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 48th Annual Report of the Company and its financial accounts for the
year endad on 31st March, 2025,

1.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company's financial performance for the year under review along with previcus years figures are given hereunder :

CURRENT PREVIOUS
YEAR {Rs.) YEAR {Rs))
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Net Sales / Income from:
a) Business Operations 67,92,48,276 66,14,07 492
by Other lncome 3,44,56 515 25752972
Total Income 71,37,05,791 68,71,60,464
Profit/ {Loss) before Interest & Depreciation 11,75,96,355 11,04,84,383
Less: Finance costinciuding Bank Charges 44,564 §1.632
Profit ! (L.oss} before Depreciation 11,75,51,791 11,04,22,751
Less: Depreciation 3,43,19,340 3.39,11,803
Profif ! {L.oss} after Depreciation but before Tax §,32,32,451 7.65,10,948
tess: Tax (Saving}/Expense
Ay Currant income-tas 1,45,00,000 83,87,778
b) Earlier year{s) Adjustman! of Income-lax 44 04,083 58,056,425
¢} Deferred Tax 51,23,921 +3,14,363
Net Profit/ {Loss) after Tax 5,92,04,437 6,26,32,108
fesss Appropriatis
a) Dividend (including Interim, # any, and Final) . ;
Net Profit/ {Loss) after Dividend & Tax 5,92,04,437 6,26,32,109
Amount transferred to General Reserve - -
Balance carried to Balance Shest 5,92,04,437 6,26,32,109
Eaning per share (Basic) 1.49 1.58
tarring per share (Diluted) 1.49 1.58

DIVIDENDS

With a view to conserve funds, the Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial vear 2024-25.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of seclion 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid by the

Company .

RESERVES

The Board of Directors do not propose any amount to be carried to any reserve.

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company is engaged in the business of Hotel Running and Financial / Portfofio Management.

The hinhlights of the Company's performance are as under:

Revenue from operations for the year stood at Rs. 67.92 crores furnover as compared to Rs. 66.14 Crores for the previous
year. Turnover has increased compared with previous year, Profif before tax for the year has also increased to Rs 8.32 Crore
as compared to Rs.7.65 Crore in the previous year, The global tourism industry continued its strong rasurgence in 2024, nearly
achieving full recovery from the pandamic's impact. Resulis were driven by strong post-pandemic demand, robust performance
from farge source markets and the Ongoing recovery of destinations in Asia and the Pacific. The Global Tourism and hospitality
seclor is poised for continued growth in 2025, following a fult recovery from the pandemic in the previous year. As per Press
information Bureau Government of India report India became the 4th largest global economy in 2025, driven by demestic
reforms and Global positioning under the vision of Aatmanirbhar Bharat. India is the World's fastest-growing major economy,
with real GDP growing at 6.5% and nominal GDP tripling from 106.57 lakh crore {2014~15) to 233103 lakh crore
(2024~25).India is projected to be World's fastest growlng major economy (6.3% to 6.8% in 2025-26).



10.

FY 2024-25 marked another landmark year for Indian tourism, driven by sfrong fundamentals such as a youthful population,
rising employment, growing disposable incomes, and solid domestic demand. Improved infrastructure, greater connactivity, and
increased investments have further accelerated the sector's mementum. The Union Budget 2025-26 allocated $291 million for
the tourism sector, with a focus on infrastruciure upgrades, skiil development, and easing travel. Key initiatives inciude the
development of 50 leading tourist destinations, improved transport connectivity, and expanding the e-visa programme, As of
December 2024, e-visas are available to citizens from more than hundred countries under § categories — making trave! to India
simpler and more accessible. The Ministry of Tourism advanced its flagship schemaes such as Swadesh Darshan, PRASHAD,
UBAN, and Dekho Apna Desh, encouraging regional and cuitural tourism. Under PRASHAD, 27 new sites across 18 states and
UTs were selected for development, with a continued emphasis on spirituai and heritage tourism.

The Indian hotel industry enters 2025 on a strong footing, supported by sustained domestic travel, infrastructure upgrades, and
rising interest from international markets. Continued economic growth, rising disposable incomes, and Evolving travel
aspirations especially among millennials and Gen Z are fueling demand for both leisure and business stays. The seclor is
witnessing increased fraction in tier-2 and tier-3 cities, driven by improved air connectivity, the rise of hybrid 'work models, and
state-lavel initiatives promoting tourism circuits. The continued advent of spirituat tourism, weddings in india, and strong M.L.C.E
activity (Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Exhibitions} surrounding large state of the art conventions centers are providing
a strong impetus to growth. According to industry estimates, demand for branded hote! rooms in India is expected to continue
outpacing supply growth which remains moderate.Drectors appreciated the efforts of the company. Company Is hopeful of
better results in the coming years as well and company is hopeful that under changed scenerio it would be able to have better
perforamnce in coming years as well.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END QF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND
THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which have occurred between
the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S QPERATIONS IN FUTURE

Applications filed by the Company and VLS Finance Lid (a registered shareholder of the Company} u/s 34 of the Arbitration ang
Reconcitiation Act 1996, challenging the Award therein given are panding for disposal since the year 2015 by the Hon'ble Delii
High Court as on the date of signing of these annual financial statements. Similarly, the second petition for enforcement of the
said Award filed by VLS Finance Lid in the Hon'ble Delhi High Court is aiso pending adjudication as an undertaking has heen
given by VLS Finance Lid not to press the exscution till the criginal cross petitions are decided, The earliar such petition filed by
VLS Finance Ltd was dismissed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court on 16/08/2017. The award contained directions to the
Company / its directors to refund to VLS Finance Ltd the forfeited security deposit of Rs. 8 Crores in terms of the MOU dated
14/03/1995 with due Interest. However, as per legal opinion received by the Company no such amount is refundable particularly
when the Hon’ble Company Law Board vide its order dated 04/09/2013 has dismissed the Company Petition of VLS Finance Lid
and decided in favour of the Company.

SFIO has filed a petition ufs 241(2) along with sections 246 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 before the Hon'ble NCLT
against the Company and others which is also pending adjudication. Similarly, SFIO has also filed a complaint on the same
subject as is before the Hon'ble NCLT in the court of the learned ASJ (Special Court) Dwarka New Dalhi, also still pending as
on this date. ’

I the FIRs filed by the State on the complaints of VLS Finance Ltd. against the Company and others, charges have been
framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings including revisions are still pending at different stages.Further Company
has filed 2 FiRs bearing no. 326/04 & 380/05 against VLS Finance Ltd in which chargesheets were filed |, the challenge to the
same by VI.S has been dismissed till Supreme Court vide order dated 25/07/2025.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required
under Section 134{3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished
in "Annexure-A’ attached to this report.

COMPANY
The Company does not have any risk management policy as the elemants of risk threatening the Company's existence are quite
mirimal.

The Company is covered under the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the company has spent the funds through "Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Society " which have
used the fund for Charitable Services and working for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward
groups. Disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 has been given by way of
an Annexura to this Report.

J:\)
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT
2013 — T e
The Company has not given any loans 1o any persen or other body corporate or given any guarantee in connection with any
lean to any body Corporate or person or acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other
body corporate during the financial year 2024-2025 covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

FARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were no fresh contracts or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 during the year under review.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS QR DISCLAIMERS
MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There were no quatifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. The provisions relating to
submission of Secretarial Audit Report are not apolicable to the Company.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF
THEIR DUTIES

A} Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

@) Members are aware about the sad demise of Mr. §.P.Gupta (DIN-00204504) on 29/09/2024. Directors placed on record deep
appreciation for the valuable services rendered by him bringing the hotel 1o the operations and running successfully over the
years despite several hurdies created.

b) Mrs, Sheef Gupta (Din-00218219) was appointed as an Additional Director on 26.09.2024 under saction 161 of the
Companies Act 2013 . Since her appointment could not be cenfirmed in the Annuat Generat Meeting of the company held on
30.2,2024, therefore her term expired on 30.9.2024. after that Mrs. Sheel Gupta was regularize as Director in the Extra Ordinary
Genereal Meeting heid on 15,11,2024.

¢} At the ensuing Annual General Meeting Mr. Vipul Gupta (DIN-00204638) | Director of the Comapny retires by rotation and
being eligibie offers himself for reappointment. Mr. Vipul Gupta shall continue fo hold his office of Cirector, and the
reappointment as such Director shall not be deemed to constitute a break in his office of Director detail regarding Mr. Vipu!
Gupta are Annexed with the Notice Calling AGM.

d} The term of Appointment of Mr. Kaveen Gupta (DIN-00204605) as an executive director expired on 31st March, 2025, Now
his Re-appeintment is proposed as executive Diractor for a period of 4.5 years i.e. with effect from 1st Aprit 2025 to 30th
September 2028,

C} Dectaration by an Independent Director(s) and re- appointment, if any

Mr Ramesh Kumar Choubey (Din- 10545097) was appointed as an Additional Director 1o fill the post of Independent Director on
02.05.2024, but due to some personal reason he resigned from the aforesaid position w.e.f 10.08.2024. As at present there are
no Independent Dirgctors in the Company. Company is searching for the suitable person to join as {ndependent Director in the
Company.

D) Formal Annual Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carvied out an annual evaluation f the performance of Board Committees and Company Secretary,
CFO of the Company pursuant fo the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The performance of the Commiliees was evaluated
by the Board on the basis of the criteria such as the coordination and effectiveness of Committee meetings, etc.

Performance of the Independent Directors was not evaluated by the Board as thers are no indipendent Director at the time of
evaluation .Further the Company is searching for the suitable persons ta join as independent Director in the Company to fulfil
the requirement,

The performance of the entire Board was evaluated on the basis of the criteria such as the Board compositicn, fulfillment of
responsibility, effectiveness of Board processes, functioning, etc. The performance of the Executive Directors {individually)
including Chairman and Non-executive Directors {individually), was evaluated by the Directors of the Company on the basis of
the criteria such as Presence in the mestings, Strategic planning, Compliance, completion of duties, etc.

Web Link of Angual Retuen,:-

The reporting of extract of Annuat Return in Form no. MGT-9 had been done away with pursuant to amendment in Section 92(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.f. 28/08/2020,
Hence, the reporiing of extract of Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Return is now required to be
placed on the website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 82(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act and link thereof is
required to be given in the Board's Report. The Annual Return for the Financial Year 2024-25 is available on web link
hitps:/iwww. hoteimetdethi.com/Drafl_annual_return25.pdf

ANNUAL RETURN

The reporting of exiract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-8 had been done away with pursuant to amendment in Section 92(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rute 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.f. 28/08/2020.
Hence, the reporling of extract of Annual Return has not been made in this repor. The Annual Return is now required fo be
placed on the website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134{3)(a} of the Act and fink thereof is
required to be given in the Board's Repert. The Annual Return for the Financial Year 2024-25 is available on web link
hitps:/hwww.hotelmetdelhi.com/Oraft_annual_return25.pdf

%
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NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The mesting of the Board of Directors were held Nine (9) times 02/05/2024, 207082024, 02/09/2024, 03/09/2024, 26/09/2024,
30/08/2024, 15/10/12024, 15/11/2024 and 22/01/2025 during the financial year 04/04/2024 to 31/03/2025.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
in terms of Section 134(3) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Acl, 2013, your Birectors confirm as under:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b} The Directors have selected such acesunting policies and applied thern consistentlly and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Ceompany at the end of the
financiaf year and of the profit of the company for that period;

¢) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and daetecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d} The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis: and

e} The Gompany being unlisted, sub clause {e) of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to laying down internal
financial controls is not applicable to the company.

f) The Diresters have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Statemant abot the subsidiary company, M/s Sun Aero Limited is enciosed with the Directors Report.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE
COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Audied Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 together with Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon
of its, a whelly owned Subsidiary Company, together with the statement as required under Section 129 of the Companies Act,
2013, a statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of the Company's subsidiary in form AQC-1 is

attached herewith. No effect in the books of account of the Company has been taken for the profit of the Subsidiary Company.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act, 2013 during the year under
review. Although the company has filed the Return of depesit form (Annuaf) pursuant to the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits} Rules, 2014.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Vipul Gupta (DIN-00204838) , Direcior of the Comapny retires by rotation and being eligible offers himseif for
reappointment, but it shall not be deemed fo constitite @ break in his office of Executive Director of the Company as he was re-
appointed as an Executive Director of the company at the 47th Annual Genaral Meeting held on 30.09,2024 for a period of 4.5
year from 01/04/2024 to 30.09.2028. Siace the term of Appointment of Mr. Kaveer Gupta (DIN-CO204605) expired on 31st
March, 2025, Now his Re-appointment is proposed as executive Director for a period of 4.5 years i.e. with effect from 1st April
2025 to 30th september 2029, Further the post of Independent Director is lying vacant after resignation of Mr.Ramesh Kumar
Choubey (Din- 10545097) who resigned on 10.08.2024 and the Company is searching for the suitabie person to join as
Independent Director in the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Mfs Anil Sood & Associates Chartered Accountant (firm registration no. 004885N) New Delhi, the Statutory Auditor of the
Company were appointed as the Auditers of the Company at the 45th Annual general Meeting of the Company held on 14th
September, 2022 pursuant to section 139 and 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules
made hereunder, as amended fram time 1o time, for period of five years tili the conclusion of the §0th Annuat General Meeting ,
subject to the ratification by the shareholders at every Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPQSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 (corresponding Section 292A of the Companies Act,
1956), the Audit Committee meeting were held five (5) times during the year on 02/05/2024, 20/08/2024, 03/09/2024,
15112024 and 22/01/2025 which were attended by all the Committee members. The Committee reviewed ali the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2025. During the Financiat Year 31st March 2025 as the post of independent
Birector was vacated during the period under review Audit commitlee had three members which includes Mr. S.P.Gupta,
Mr.Vipul Gupta and Mr. Kaveen Gupta who attended the three meetings and remaning Committee Meeting attended by
Mr.Vipul Gupta and Mr. Kaveen Gupta and Mrs. Sheel Gupta, Provisions Related with the Vigil Mechanism is not applicable on
Caompany.

SHARES

a) DEFFERENTIAL RIGHTS
The Company has not issued any share with differentiai rights, as provided in 1ule 4 (4) of Companies {Share Capitat and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the year.

b) SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review. The Company has not issued any
sweat equity shares as provided in rule 8 {13) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the year.

Q
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¢} BONUS SHARES
The Company has not issued any share related with any scheme where the voting rights are not exercised direclly by the
employees, as provided in rufe 16 (4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014,

d) EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not issued any Employee Stock Options as provided in ruie 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the financial year.

Extra Ordinary General Meeting
There is one Extracrdinary General Meeting was held on 15/11/2024 during the financial year under review.

AUDITORS' REPORT
The Directors are of the view that the notes appended to the accounts and referred to by the auditors in their report are self-
explanatory and do not require any elucidation.

Share Yransfer Committee

There is no share Transfer held during the year under review,shares which were hsid as joint shareholder after the death of
first shareholder those shares were considered in the name second shareholder.

NCMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The policy formutated by nomination and remuneration committee is enclosed. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
meeting were held two {2) times during the year on 02/09/2024 and 22/01/2025 which were attended by all the Committee
members.During the Financial Year 37st March 2025 as the post of Independant Director was vacated during the period under
review committee had three members which includes Mr. S.P.Gupta, Mr.Viput Gupta and Mr. Kaveen Gupta who attended one
meeting and remaning commitlee Maeting was attended by Mr.Vipul Gupta and Mr. Kaveen Gupta and Mrs. Sheel Gupta.

Corporate Social Responsihility Committes (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibifity Commiltee meeting was held one (1) times during the year on 22/01/2025, which were attended
by all the Committee members. As the post of independent Director was vacant during the period under review CSR committee
had three members which includes Mrs. Sheel Gupta, Mr.Vipul Gupta and Mr, Kaveen Gupta who attended the aforesaid
meetings.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1} of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on Company. Although the refevent
details are avaitable in Auditor report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
Not Applicable.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Not applicable.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
Maintenance of cost recerds has not been specified by the Centfrat Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

The Company has adopted & policy for prevention of sexual harassmant at the workpface, in line wilh the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 {"POSH Act’). An internal
Complaints Committee (“ICC"} has been duly constituted as per the provisions of the POSH Act to redress complaints regarding
sexual harassment at the workplace.During the financial year under review, No complaints were received andfor pending. The
Company is committed to providing a safe and conducive work environment for all its employees,

Status of complaints as on March 31, 2025:

Number of complaints filed during the financiat year 0
Number of complaints disposad of during the financial year [
Number of complaints pending at the end of the finangial year [

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD ISSUED BY ICSI
Company has complied with the Secretariat Standard issued by 1ICSL

MATERNITY BENEFIT DETAIL._AS PER SECOND AMENDMENT RULFE 2025 DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

Women who have taken a career break and wish to return to the workforce. The company offers both full-time and project-
based roles, aliowing women the flexibility 1o re-enter the job market, Our inclusive environment provide extended maternity
leave, créche facilities,and fraining programmes to women return to workplace Further, maternity paid leave was granted to
women employee during the year 2024-2025,

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

Adequate Internal Financial Contro! systern and checks are in place commensurate with the size of the company and nature of
its business. V0
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DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12} OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE
Curing the year under review, the statutory auditors has not reported to the audit commitiee, under section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, any instance of fraud committed against the Company by its officars or employees, the detall of which
would need to be mentioned in the Director's Report.

4G Disclosure under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (iBC), 2016
There is no proceeding which is pending under the Insolvency and Bankrupley Code (1BC), 2016 during the financial year under
review.
41 Details of Difference between Valuation Amount on One Time Settlement and Valuation while availing Loan from Banks
During the year under review there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken from Banks and Financial Institutions.
42  ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, various Government
Authorities, employees and shareholders for their continued support extended to your Company's activities during the year
under review,
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
& of |- S~
(KAVEEN GUPTA) (VIPUL GUPTA)
Place : New Delhi (DIN-00204605) (MN-00204538)
Dated : 01/08/2025 Executive Director Executive Director
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ANNEXURE-A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING

AND OUTGO FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2025

fnformation on conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo
required fo be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

(A} Conservation of Energy:

()

(i)

i)

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.

Company is making all Efforts to improve energy usage efficiencies and increase the share of
renewable energy and reuse of natural recourses. The Company has a process to identify and
evaluate energy risks and opportunities, taking into account future plans, evolving reguiatory
frameworks and other aspects, Further Your Company has implemented various guidance
issued by The Ministry of Environment and Forests {MoEF) and other applicabie jaws to make
hotels moere environment friendly.

Company has complied and would comply with the requirements of the Government in this
regard. Your company has continuously being acquiring the ecofriendly methods and
environment friendly technologies and other necessary measures to achieve economy in
consumption of energy. The company is already having following systems in place for
conservation of energy.

a. Using of 4 stage dimmer system

b. In guest rooms energy key card system.

¢. Building automation system for all equipments.

d. Various speed pumps.

e. VFD operated A/c plant with eco- Friendly system.

f. Most of the equipments are PNG operated.

g. PNG operated boilers

h. in guest rcoms insulated windows.

i.  Eco-friendly laundry equipments.

j- Company has already replaced device in Air condition plants with energy saving devices
kK. Company has already replaced all lighting with LED

| Company is using natural pipe gas for boilers & Kitchen equipments.

m Replacement of guest Elevator

n  Replacement of Air Condition plant no.3 with VFD operated ECO- friendly system

o Charcoal base Tandoor replaced with PNG Tandoor.

a. Nofresh investment and upgradation in energy conservation system in the year 2024-25

The steps taken by the company for uiilizing alternate sources of

energy. ¢ Rs. Nil
a. Natural Gas

b. Sclar Energy .

The capital investment on energy conservation equipments. : Rs. Nil

{B) Technology Absorption;

0]

Company has already taken steps towards technology absorption in the last few years and
some of them are listed below:

a. Replacement of Service Elevator Eco Friendly - 2 nos.

b. Replacement of Goods Elevator Energy efficient.

¢.  Upgradation in STP Plant for recycling of water.

d  Organic Waste Converter, V2



(ii)

(i)

{iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

7\......_3_@ -4

Upgradation in Rain Water Harvesting System.
Company has already Built Automation System
Company is conducted Water & Energy Audit every year.
Company is already having has LED System

Online Monitoring System of Sewage Treatment Plant and Air Monitoring System
100% Reusing of waste water after treatment
Charcoal base Tandoor replaced with PNG Tandoor.

During the previous year the none efforts faken towards technology absorption.

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product

development or import substitution.

a. Cost Reduction
b, Product iImprovement

in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year).
(a) the details of technology imported

(b) the year of import;
(

and the reasons thereof.

Particulars
Earnings
Outgo / Expenses

Piace : New Delhi
Dated : 01/08/2025

c) whether the technology been fully absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,

31%'March 2025

NA

NA

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
31%'March 2024

11,73,68,503

12,14,39,268
92,37,822

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

Sl |-

(KAVEEN GUPTA)
(DIN-00204605)
Executive Director

cdl-
(VIPIN JAIN)
Chief Financiat Officer
M.No.-FCS 8984

1%

el

(VIPUL GUPTA)
(DIN-00204638)
Executive Director

S f -
{NEHA RAJPUT)

Company Secretary
{(M.no. A-26116)



Form No. AGC-1
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3} of section 128 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Ruies, 2014) for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate
compantes/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

{information in respect of subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Hundreds )
1. Sl No. -1
2. Name of the subsidiary- Sun Aero Limited

3 the date since when subsidiary was acquired- 22/10/1983

4. Reporling period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's reporting
period 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025.

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries, -N.A.

6. Share capital ~Authorized Share Capital - 1000000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and paid up share
capital- 70000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

7.  Reserves & surplus : 27,37,97,883
8. Total assets : 27,46,65,883
9. Total Liabilities : 1,68,000

10. Investments : -

11. Turnover : 1,78,64,467
12.  Profit before taxation : (42,48,808)
13.  Provision for taxation : {3,05,641)
14.  Profit after taxation : (39,43,168)

15, Proposed Dividend : -
16. % of shareholding : 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations —N.A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year, — N.A.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date N.A.
2 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired- N.A,

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on

)



the year end ' - N.A,

iy No. NLA,
iy Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture N.A.
ity Extend of Holding % N.A.
4. Description of how there is significant influence N.A.
5 N.A

Reason why the assoctate/joint venture is not consolidated

6. Net worth atiributable to Shareholding as per latest audited N.A.
Balance Sheet

7. Profit/ Loss for the year
i.) Considered in Consolidation N.A.
ii.) Not Considered in Consclidation N.A.

—

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence cperations — N.A.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been fiquidated or sold during the year.- N.A,

AUDITORS' REPORT

As per our repert of even date - U )
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES e -9")/ B
Chartered Accountants (KAVEEN GUPTA) (VIPUL GUPTA)
Firm Regn. No.0D4985N {DIN-00204605) (DIN-G0204638)
Executive Director Executive Director
=R S S~
{ANIL SOQOD) {(VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place : New Delhi Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Dated : 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939 M.No.-FCS 8884 {M.No. A-26116)
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ANNEXURE-B
FORMNO, AQC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014] for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED
INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH
TRANSACTION UNDER THIRD PROVISO THERETO

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at Arm's Length basis:

Sl No, Particulars Details
{a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship : NIL
(b}  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
{c} Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction : NIL

including the value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or : NIL
fransaction
(fi  Date of approval by the Board : NiL
(gy Amount paid as advances, if any : NiL
(hy Bate on which the special resoiution was passed in General : NiL

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction at Arm’s Length basis:

Sl. No, Particulars Details
(a} Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship : NiL
(b}  Nature of confracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / fransacticn X NIL
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or fransaction : NiL

including the value, if any
(e) Date of approval by the Board X NH.
()  Amount paid as advances, if any : NIL

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

- o)
(KAVEEN GUPTA) (VIPUL GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi {DIN-00204605) {DIN-00204638)
Dated ; 01/08/2025 Executive Director Executive Director



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR REPORT

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION POLICY

INTRODUCTION

in an endeavor to safeguard the interest of public at farge, the Companies Act, 2013 {'Act’} provides that the
performance of the board of directors of listed companies and prescribed class of companies must be
reviewed regularly against appropriate measures. For this purpose, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of a company is required under Section 178 of the Act to formuiate a poiicy for recommending it to
the Board of directors of the company, setting the criteria, based on which the performance of each and every
director including the performance of the Board as a whole shall be assessed by the Board of Directors of the
Company. Based on such performance evaluation, remuneration of dirgctors, key managerial personnel and
other senior management shall be determined. such an evaluation procedure will provide a fine system of
checks and balances on the performance of the directors and will ensure that they exercise their powers in a
rational manner.

This policy aims at establishing a procedure for conducting periodical evaluation of directors’ performance and
formulating the criteria for determining qualification, positive attribute and independence of each and every
director of the Company in order to effectively determine issues relating to remuneration of every director, key
managerial personnel and other employees of the Company. This policy further aims at ensuring that the
committees to which the Board of Directors has defegated specific responsibilities are performing efficiently in
conformity with the prescribed functions and duties. For this purpese, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall be responsible to identify the persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in the senior management of the Company and recommend to the Board their appoiniment and
removal,

In addition, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall carry out the evaiuation of performance of
every director, key managerial personnel and other employees in accordance with the criteria contained
herein, based on which their remuneration shall be determined.

RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD

it shall be the duty of the Chairman of the Board, who shall be supported by the Company Secretary fo
organize the evaluation process and accordingly conclude the steps required to be taken. The evaluation
process will be used constructively as a system to improve the directors’ and committees’ effectiveness, to
maximize their strength and to tackle their shortcomings.

The Board of Directors shall undertake the following activities on an annual basis:

f.  The Chairman of the Company shall meet with each and every director individually to discuss his / her
performance throughout the year.

Il.  Review performance evaluation reports submitted by the Chairperson of various committees along with
their suggestions on improving the effectiveness of the committee. Also, the requirement of establishing
any new committees shall be reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.

. Review the various strategies of the Company and accordingly set the performance objectives for
directors, in consistency with varying nature and requirements of Company's business,

V. The Board as a whole shall discuss and analyze its own performance during the year together with
suggestions for improvement thereon, pursuant to the performance objectives.

In conformity with the requirement of the Act, the performance evaluation of independent directors shali be
done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.

V1



RESPONSIBILTY OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Independent Directors shall evaluate the performance of non - independent directors and board as a whole,
The independent directors of the Company shalt hold at least one meeting in a year to review the performance
of the non- independent directors, performance of chairperson of the Company and Board as a whole, taking
into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.

EVALUATION FACTORS

The Board of Directors shall pay regards to the following parameters for the purpose of evaluating the
performance of a particular director:

In respect of each of the evaluation factors, various aspects have been provided to assist with the evaluation
process in respect of performance of independent directors, non- independent directors, other empioyees of
the Company and committees of directors separately, as, such evaluation factors may vary in accordance with
their respective functions and duties.

Rating Scale
Scale Performance

Exceptionally good
Good

Satisfactory

Needs improvement
Unacceptable

=N W R O

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS Overall Rating:

- |Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Act & other Laws

- [Compliance with ethical standards

-_{Rendering independent, unbiased opinion

- |Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & committees

- |Attendance & presence in general meetings

- |Leadership qualities

- |Qualifications

- iDisclosure of independence, and disclosure of interest

-_{Independent view on key appointments & strategy formulation

- |Objective evaluation of Board's performance

- |Review of integrity of financial information

- |Safeguard of stakeholders’ interests

- |Appointment & removal of KMPs

- |Determination of level of remuneration of KMPs

- |Updation of skills and knowledge

- |Punctuality

-_|Information regarding external environment

-_1Seeking expert opinion, when required

- {Raising of concerns to the Board

- {Reporting of frauds, violation etc,

- |Team work attributes

- |Safeguard of confidential information

\2




NON - INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS / NON — EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS/! EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS/CMD

Overall Rating:

~_|Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

- |Strategic planning- financial & business

- |Operatienal performance of the Company

- iMonitoring performance against plans

- | Steps initiated towards Business Development

- _|Steps initiated towards Branding of the Company

- |Compliance with ethical standards

- _|Exercising duties diligently

- {Qualifications

- [Punctuality

- |Disclosure of interest

- {Leadership skilis

- iMotivating employees, providing assistance & directions

- |Establishment of internal control processes

- |Cormmunication skills

-_|Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & committees

- _|Attendance of general meetings

- | Team work atfributes

- |Monitoring policies, encouraging suggestions

- |Supervising & training the staff members

- |Safeguard of confidential information

CCMMITTEES OF BOARD
The Board has constituted the following committeas:

Audit Committee;

Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
Corporate Social Responsibilities Committee
Share Transfer Commitiee

B

For evaluating the performance of each committes, the Board of Directors shall pay regards to the foillowing
aspects:
Overall Rating:

- {Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

- {Compliance with its charter documents B127

- |Compliance with ethical standards& code of conduct of Company

- _|Committee's accomplishments w.r.t. performance objectives

- |Redressal of complaints & grievances

- |Coordination with other committees and Board of Directors

- {Fulfillment of roles & responsibilities B132

- _|Adherence to Company's policies and internal procedures
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ENTIRE BOARD Overall Rating:

Is the composition of the board appropriate with the right mix of Knowledge and skills
- _|required to drive organizational performance in the Light of future strategy?

- |Members of the board meet all applicable independence requirements.

The Board of Directors is effective in establishing a corporate environment that
promotes timely and effective disclosure, fiscal accountability, high ethical standards
-_|and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board of Directors is effective in developing a good corporate governance
- |practice that allows and encourages the Board to fulfill its Responsibilities.

The Board is provided with sufficient information about material risks and problems
-_|that affects the Company’s business and prospects.

The Board receives reguiar financial updates and takes afl necessary steps to
ensure the operations of the organization are sound and reviews the crganization’s
performance in carrying out the stated mission on a regutar basis.

Are sufficient numbers of board meetings, of appropriate length, being held to enabie
- |proper consideration of issuas?

The information provided to directors prior to Board meetings meets expectations in
- (terms of length and leve! of detail

Board meetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open Communication,
- |meaningful participation, and timely resolution of issues.

The Chairman of the Board effectively and appropriately leads and facilitates the
- 1Board meetings and the policy and governance work of the Board.

Nomination and appointment of Board members and their Remuneration foliow
ciearly established procedures laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration
- |Commitiee.

COMPANY SECRETARY Overall Rating:

- |Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

-_1Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of Company

- iReporting to the Board about compliance with applicable laws

- |Ensuring compliance with secretarial standards

- |Assistance to the board of directors

- |Discharge of duties assigned by Board

- _{success of meetings convened

- _|Preparation of minutes

Aftendance & presence in meeting of board, commitiees of Board and general
- {meeting

-_{Assistance in obtaining required approvals form Board, shareholders, Government

- .{Representation before various regulators on behalf of the company

- _|Advising Board on corporate governance and compliance there under

- |Punctuality

OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR EMPLOYEES

Overall Rating:

- _Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

- |Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of Company

- _[Fulfillment of roles and responsibilities granted to them

- _|Achievement of target fixed

- _|Punctuality and other personality related aspects
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REMUNERATION

The Company aspires to pay performance linked remuneration to its directors, key managerial persennel and
other senior employees. For this reason, based on the fore-stated criteria of evatuation of performance of
directors, Company Secretary and other Key Managerial Personnel and senior empioyees, their remuneration
shalt be determined and reviewed from time o time by the Chairman & Managing Director.

REVIEW

Subject to the approval of Board of Directors, the "Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee” reserves its
right to review and amend this Policy, if required, to ascertain its appropriateness as per the needs of the
Company. The Policy may be amended by passing a resolution at a meeting of the Nomination and
Remuneration Commitiee,

DISCLOSURE

In accordance with the requirement under the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder, disclosures will
be made in the Board Report regarding the manner in which the performance evaluation has been done by
the Board of Directors of its own performance, performance of various Committees of Directors and individual
Directors.

S Cof
(VIPUL GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)

Place: New Delhi {DIN-00204638) (DIN-00204605)
Dated : 01/08/2025 Executive Director Executive Director
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ANNEXURE-3
Annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Activities
For the Financial Year 2024-2025

[Pursuant tc clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the CSR

Committee, had formulated a Corporate Social Respensibility Policy (“CSR"). As par the Policy Statement, the
Company's CSR policy wit focus on addressing the critical social economic issues.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Name Designaticn No. of Meeting of CSR No. of Meeting of CSR
Committee held during the  Committee attend during
. year the year
0 Sh. Sheel Gupta (DIN:  Chairperson and 1 1
00218219) Director
(i} Sh.Vinul Gupta (DIN:  Member {Whole Time 1 1
00204638} Director)
(i) 5h. Kaveen Gupta(DIN:  Member (Whole Time y y
00204805_) Director)

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projecis approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company: Not Applicable

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy} Rules, 2014, if applicable (aitach the report): Not
Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

Sl Financial Year Amount available for set off from Amount Required to be set off for the
No preceding financial year financial year, if any
1 NIL

Total |

6 Average nst profit of the company for tast three financial years -Rs. 7,55,95,947/-

7. a. Two Percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) -Rs. 15,11,919/-

b.  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
¢.  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year {7a+7b-7c): -Rs.15,11,050/-




8. (a). CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Spent for the
Financial Year. (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6)

Total Amount transferred to any fund
specified under schedule VIl as per
second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund {fransfer
15,111,850 Nil N.A Nil
{b). Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
{1 (2) (3} 4) (5) {6) {7) 8
Amount
spent on the
projects or
Projects or programs programs
Sector {1) Local area or Sub - heads:
in other (1) Direct Amount
which (2} Specify the State expenditure | Cumulative [spent - Direct
CSR the and district where | Amount outlay| on projects | expenditure | or through
S. | project or Project projects or programs (budget) or programs | upto to the | implementin
No| activity is covered was undertaken project or (2} reporting g agency”
identified programs wise! Overheads period
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year Is detailed below.
{in Rs.}
(1) (2) (3} {4) {5) (8) (7} (8)
Amount
spent on the
projects or
Prajects or programs programs
Sector (1) Local area or Sub — heads:
in other (1) Direct Amount
which (2) Specify the State expenditure | Cumulative [spent : Direct
CSR the and district where | Amount outlay| on projects | expenditure | or through
S.| project or Project projects or programs (budget) or programs | upte to the | implementin
No| activity is covered was undertaken project or (2) reporting g agency”
identified programs wise| Overheads period
For Charitable
Diagnositic services
As per Clause .
Abhinandanill} of schedule rejungn\';ﬁ;ggi;ﬁées Abhinandan
4 1Jan Kalyan V1l of the . 15,111,850 15,411,850 16,11,950| Jan Kalyan
Society Companies faced by soc_:laiiy and Society
act 2013, economically .
backward groups in
Delhi
TOTAL 15,11,950 15,11,950f 15,111,850
{d} Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA 9%

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8¢+8d+8e): Rs. 15,11,950/-




{g} Excess amount for set off, if any:

51 No. Particular Amount {in Rs.}
(#) Two pergent of average net profit of the company as per section 135({5) 15,411,219
{if) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 15,111,850
{iti) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i}] -31
{iv) Surplus arising cut of the CSR projects or programmaes or activities of the

previous financial years, if any -
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{i#)-(iv)]

9. (2} Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA
{b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year{s): NA

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: The Company has not created or acquired any capital
assets through CSR spent in the Financial Year 2024-25.

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): The Company had undertaken to spend an amount of 15,11,950/- during the financiat year 2024-
25 as per mandatory reguirement and no CSR amount left unspent.

el |- <o) el )
{(SHEEL GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA) {(VIPUL GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi  (DIN-00218219) {DIN-00204605) {DIN-00204638)
Dated : 01/08/2025 Chairperson Executive Director Executive Director



5-316, GROUND FLOOR
GREATER KAILASH PART-I
NEW DELHI - 110 048
Ph.:011-42548288

email: ca.asood@gmail.com

ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Sunair Hotels Limited
("the Company"}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein referred as "the Standzlone
Financial Statements"),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the (Accounting
Standards) Rules 2021 ("AS")and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit and cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics (CoE) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules made thersunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report
{hereinafter called as "Board Report") which comprises various information’s required under
section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statement does not cover the Board Report and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the Board Report and in doing so, consider whether the Board Report is materially inconsistent
with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

2.4



:é:

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this Board Report, we are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the AS and other accounting principles generaily accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregutarities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the operative effectiveness of Company's internal control systems.

¢} Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
A
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d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

e} Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Thisreportincludes a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government in terms of sub-section {11)
of section 143 of the Act, since in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the said Order is applicable to the Company and has been annexed
as Annexure - A,

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss and the
standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021. on
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e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March

h)

2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure — B”. Qur report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

(a) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025, has been
paid/provided by the Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Standalone financial statements-Refer Note No. 38 to the Standalone financial
statements.

(ii) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

(iii) There have been no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv} (&) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities {Intermediaries), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party {(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the tike on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

PES
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under {a) and (b), contain any material misstatement.

{v) (a) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
{(b) The Company have not proposed any dividend for the year.

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for alf relevant transactions recorded
in the software systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

for Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

5-316, Ground Floor, Cc//
Greater Kailash Part-1 (Anil Sood)
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939

’2(\



CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS GREATER KAILASH PART-l
NEW DELH! - 110 048

Ph.:011-42548288
email: ca.asood@gmail.com

ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES %; $-316, GROUND FLOOR

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited of even date)

(i) Inrespect of the Company’'s Property, Plant and Equipment:
{a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. The company has no
intangible asset.

{b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and
equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, property, plant
and equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, we
report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company.

(d} The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment {including Right of
Use assets) during the year.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025, for holding
any henami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended
in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventory includes food, Beverage, Operating Equipment, spares were physically
verified by the management at reasonabie intervals during the year. The discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

{b) The Company has not availed /been sanctioned any working capitatl limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from Banks on the basis of security of current assets, therefore no
requirement to file quarterly returns/statements by the Company with such banks. Hence, this
clause is not applicable.

(iii) During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee{s) or
security{ies) or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans Secured or Unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any parties hence clause 3(iii)(a) to 3{iii} (f)
is not apptlicable to the company.

NS
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{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted,
investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

{v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted
any amounts which are deemed o be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(v} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of
cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013,

{vi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:
(a} The Company has generally been regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate
authorities except few instances of delays in deposits,

According to the information and explanations given, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of above statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2025, for a period of
more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) The dues in respect of goods and service tax, value added tax, income tax and excise duty
which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2025, on account of dispute are given

below:-
Period to Forum where dispute
Amount which the is pending *
Name of the Nature of {inRs amount
statute dues Lacs) relates
Income-tax Act, Income-tax AY 2001-02 to
1961 il AY 2005-06 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Act, Income-tax
1961 Nil AY 2006-07 ITAT, New Delhi
Income-tax Act, Income-tax AY 2007-08 to
1961 Nii AY 2011-12 High Court, New Delhi

* Theses Income-tax appeals have been decided in favour of the Company. However, the
revenue has preferred further appeals, challenges these orders before the higher forums.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under Income Tax Act as income during the year.

{ix} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not taken any term loan from banks / others during the year. Hence clause ix (a) to {c) is
not applicable,

{d) On an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term

purposes by the Company. X



{e} On an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in the subsidiaries.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)
{a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of fully or
partially or convertible debentures during the year under audit.

{xi) (2) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to

us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under section 143(12)
of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government,

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

{xii)The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the

requirement to report on clauses 3(xii) (a), {(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xIli)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards,

(xiv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not require

to have internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 13 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

{xv)In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors

or persons connected with its directors and hence, requirement to report on clause 3{xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(xvi)  (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank

of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi} (a), (b} and {¢) of the Order is not
applicable,

EDN
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(b} In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3{xvi) {d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year under our audit and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation by the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix}  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all iiabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

{xx}  {a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) or other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3{xx} (a) is not applicable for the year.

{b} There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of Section 135(6) of the Act.

for Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

S‘c}/-

5-316, Ground Floor,

Greater Kailash Part-! (Anil Sood)
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939



ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5-316, GROUND FLOOR
GREATER KAILASH PART-}
NEW DELH{ - 110 048
Ph.:011-42548288

email: ca.asood@gmait.com

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph {f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sunair Hotels Limited
{“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of iIndia (ICAI}. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAl and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143({10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company, ‘3)&\
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting inciudes those policies
and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internat financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internat financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the 1CAL

for Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

$-316, Ground Floor, E:fc:)f‘:

Greater Kailash Part-1 {Anil Sood)
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CiN: U74899DL1977PLC00B495

REGD OFFICE: A7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL] ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

g-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stafed)

2‘0 Particuiars Notes 31/03/2025 3110312024
. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Shareholders' Funds
{a} Share Capital 3 397,500.00 397,500.00
{b) Reserves And Surplus 4 1,398,207.93 1,785,707.93 1,339,003.50 1,736 ,503.50
{2} Non-current Liabilities
{a) Deferred Tax Liabilities 5 162,978.58 157,854.66
(b Other Long-Term Liabilities 8 89,405.00 89,420.00
(¢} Long-Term Provisions 7 28,618.54 281,902.11 26,581.86 273,868.52
(3} Current Liabilities
(@) Trade Payables 8
Enterprises and Smail Enterprises; - 3,520.22
and
23,960.78 22,508.09
- Total Ouistanding dues of
Creditors  other  than  Micro
Enterprises and Smalf Enterprises
(b) Other Current Liabilities g 120,946.24 101,324.41
(¢} Short Term Provisions 10 11,747.60 156,654.62 10,660.80 138,014.61
TOTAL 2,234,264.87 2,148,384.63
. ASSETS
(1) Non-gurrent Assetls
(a) Property, Plant and Eguipment 11
- Tangible Assets {Not Under Lease) 966,5612.26 099 ,660.37
- Tangible Assets {Under Lease) 210,000.00 1,176,512.26 210,000.00  1,209,669.37
(b) Non - Current Investments 12 723,145.50 £92,710.30
(¢} Long-Term Loans and Advances 13 103,244.27 54,331.00
(dy Other Non- Current Asset 14 12,753.36 12,753.36
(2} Current Assets
{a) Inventories 15 74,393.42 73,478.48
(b} Trade Receivables 18 36,907.74 26,783.97
(¢} Cash And Cash Equivalents 17 52,130.82 16,735.82
(d) Short - Term Loans and Advances 18 52,820.12 57.863.47
(e) Other Current Asseis 18 2,357 18 218,609.28 4,0568.8% 178,920.60
TOTAL 2,234,264,67 2,148,384,83
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis
%l adi-

As per our separale repon of even date atlached
For ANIL SO0D & ASSQCIATES.

Firm Regn No. DD4S885N
Chartered Accountants

Cj__‘>(-b ] -
{ANIL. SO0D)
Place : New Delhi Partner
Dated : 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939

{KAVEEN GUPTA)
Executive Director
{DIN-002048605)

L -

. {VIPIN JAIN)
Ab Chief Financiai Officer
M.No.-ECS 8984

{VIPUL GUPTA)
Executive Director
(DIN-00204638)

SLJ/ -
{(NEHA RAJPUT)

Company Secretary
{M No. A-26118)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PLC0O0B495
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELH! - 110 017

e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Websife- www . hotelmetdelhi.com

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

No Particulars Notes 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
. Income

(a) Revenue from Operation 20 6579,249.28 661,407.49

(b) Other Income 21 34,456,519 2575297
i. Totallncome 713,705.78 687,160.46
lll. Expenses

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 22 46,438.92 48,718.06

(h) Cost of Utilities and Hospitality Services 23 979.85 1,098.15

{c} Employee benefit expenses 24 134,326.35 135,148,54

(d) Other expenses 25 412,852.27 380,966.04

() Finance costis 26 44 .56 8163

{fy Depreciation 27 34,319.24 33,911.80

{g) Expenditure on CSR Activity 28 1,611.85 745 30
V. Total Expenses 630,473.34 6510,849.51
V. Profit/ (loss) before tax (1 - IV) 83,232.45 76,510.95
VI. Tax expense

(8) Current tax 14,500.00 8,387.78

(b)y Earlier years' tax 4,404.09 5,805.42

(c) Deferred Tax 5,123.92 24,028.01 -314.36 13,878.84
Vil. Profit/ (loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (V - VI) 59,204.44 62,632.11
VIII. Earnings per equity share (EPS) 28

(a) Basic 1.49 1.58

(o) Diluted 1.49 1.58
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our separate report of even date attached Sdl Se J /-
For ANIL. SCOD & ASSOCIATES. (KAVEEN GUPTA) (VIPUL GUPTA}

Firm Regn No. 004985N
Chartered Accountants

‘;a’ }"
{ANIL SO0D)
Place ; New Dethi Partner
Dated : 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83938
2

Executive Director
{DIN-00204605)

Cd)-
(VIPIN JAIN)

Chief Financial Officer
M.No,-FCS 8984

Executive Director
(DIN-00204538)

Sd) -
(NEHA RAJPUT)

Company Secretary
(M No. A-26116;}



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U74899DL1977PLCO08B495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELH| - 110 017

e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Website- www. hotelmetdelhi.com

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

(Al amounts in thousand of T_unless otherwise stated)

NS(;' Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit /{loss) before tax and after prior period expenses 78,828.36 70,705.52
Adjustments for:
- Non Cash Expense/ {Income)- Depreciation 34,318.34 33,811.80
- Non Cash Expense/ {Incomae)- interest On investment -36.96 -21.37
- Non Cash Expense/ {Income)- Dividend On Investment -3.20 -2.59
- Profit (Loss) on Sale of Assets - ~111.13
Operating (loss) before working capital changes 113,107 .54 104,482.23
Movement in working capita;
(Decrease)increase in Trade Payables -2,088.53 1,205.38
Increase/(Decrgase) in Other Current Liabilities 19,621.83 4,334.77
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables -10,123.77 5,004.71
Decrease / (increase) in Short Term Loan & Advances 5,043.35 -4.286.82
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories -914.86 ~931.13
increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Assets 1,701,714 -473.98
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilifies -15.G60 -985.00
Increase / (decrease} in Long Term Provisions 2,926.68 10,039.76
Decrease / {increase) in Long Term Loan & Advances -48,913.27 -23,802.02
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current assets - -
Increase / (decrease) in Short Term Provisions 1,086.71 -2,757.51
Cash (used In} operations 81,452.28 91,810.41
Direct taxes {paid) 14,500.00 8,387.78
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A} 66,952.28 83,422.63
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets -1,162.23 -26,238.09
Purchase of investments -30,435.20 -81,744.11
Sale of Fixed Assets - 350.00
Bividend on investment 3.20 2.59
Interest on Investment 36.96 -
Net cash (used in) Investing activities (B) -31,657.28 -107,629.61
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inferest Income - 21.37
Net cash from financing activities (C) - 21.37
Net increase / {decrease) In cash and cash equlvalents (A+B+GC) 35,395.00 -24,185.61
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year () 16,735.82 40,821.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (E) 52,130.82 16,735.82
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E-D) 35,395.00 -24,185.61
Cash at Bank 47,808.24 13,411.02
Cash on hand 3,764.26 2,803.43
Bank Deposits 558.32 521,37
52,130.82 16,735.82

r:%’ g,




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CiN: U74898DL1977PLC0O0B495
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL] ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of €, unless otherwise stated)
Note: The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the
‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our separate repert of even date attached Q‘H B & ‘) /-
For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES. (KAVEEN GUPTA) (VIPUL. GUPTA)
Firm Regn No, 004985N Executive Director Executive Director
Chartered Accountants {DIN-00204605) (DIN-00204838)
adl” e |- edj-
(ANIL SO0OD) {VIPIN JAIN) {NEHA RAJPUT)
Place : New Dethi Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Dated : 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83339 M.No.-FCS 8984 (M No. A-26116)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL! ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS
a) The Standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principies in india (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Coempanies (Accounting
Standards) Rules 2021 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") as
applicable,

b} The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention basis. The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the previous vear.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A, Use of Estimates :
The preparation of Standalone financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference betwaen the actual
results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

B. Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment:
a) Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

{i) Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revaluation, iess accumulated depreciation-and impairment loss, if any. Al costs, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable 1o bringing the assets to their working condition for
the intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised,

(i} Land is stated at original cost of acquisition.

(i) Capital work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Sheet.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

b)Y Leased Assets:
(it Operating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other
{iiy Einance Leases; The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum
lease rentals is- capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount
shown as lease liability. The principal component in the lease rental is adjusted against the
lease liability and the interest component is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

{iily However, rentals referred to in (i) or (i) above and the interest component referred to in (i)
above periaining to the period upto the date of commissioning of the assets are capitaiized,

(iv) All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net
investment in the lease. Initial direct cos!s in respect of lease are expensed in the year in which
such costs are incurred. income from lease assets is accounted by applying the interest rate
implicit in the lease to the net investment,

C. Intangible Assets & Armortisation:
Intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-26) on
“Intangible Asseis" and are amortised over the usefu! life of the underlying assets as follows:

a) Leasehold fand: over the period of lease. Yo
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b) Lump sum fees for technicai know-how: over a pericd of six years in case of foreign technology and
three years in case of indigenous technology.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and amortization:

ay Depreciation on fancible Property, Plant and Ecquipments is calculated on Straight Line Method
pursuant to the requirements of Schedule-1i of the Campanies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01,
2014, by using the rates prescribed therein over the estimated useful lives of the Property, Piant and
Equipments as specified in Part 'C', while fixing the residual values of the Property, Plant and
Equipments at 5% of their original cost, in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year
and on prorata basis for assets acquired & put to use during the year.

b) Intangible Propedy, Piant and Equipments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful economic life in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata
basis for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year. If there is a significant
change from previous estimates in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the
amortization period and method are changed accordingly to reflect the changed pattern. However,
no amortization expense is provided on intangible assets derecognized during the year.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified
as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualfifying asset is one that takes necessarily
substantial pericd of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to
revenue in the period in which they are incurred,

. Valuation of Investment;

a) Trade investments are the invesiments made to enhance the Company's business interests.
Investrments are either classified as current or long-term based on Management's intention at the
time of purchase.

b) Current investmenis are carried at the lower of cost and fair market value of each investment
individually. :

¢) Long term invesiments are carried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any diminution,
other than temporary, in the carrying value of each investment.

d) Cost for overseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the
investment translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of investment,

Investment Property:

An investment in land or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment properly. Investment properties are stated
at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a Straight Line Method
basis using the rates and useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il fo the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
aof such investment properiies which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis for assets
acquired and put to use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the investment
properties sold during the year, but on disposal, the difference between its carrying amount and the net

disposal proceeds is charged or credited te the statement of profit and loss.
N
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Valuation of Inventory:
Invenlories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value wherever applicable. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis.

Revenue Recognition:

All incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis. Revenue in respect of
insurance / other claims, interest, commission, etc. is recognised only when it is reasonabiy certain that
the uitimate collection will be made. Expenses incurred for which benefit will accrue in the subsequent
years are dectared in the balance sheet as deferred revenue expenses and amortised over the period in
which the benefit is expected o accrue.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

a) In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in {oreign exchange rate”
as prescribed by the {CAl, year-end balance of foreign currency transactions is translated at the
year-end rates and the corresponding effect is glven in the respective accounts. Transactions
denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing at the time of ransaction.
However, transactions completed during the year are adjusled on aclual basis.

b) In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year
end rate and rate on the date of {he conliacl is recognized as exchange difference and the premium
paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

¢} Nen-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost,

d) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on transiation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate {o acquisition of
Property, Plant and Equipments, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

- €) Difference in outstanding value of term loan in foreign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the date

of obtaining loan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account called ‘Exchange

DPifference (FC Loan)’ Account to be approprited at the conclusion of the said term loan.

f) Difference in foreign exchange forward contracts is recognised as income / loss in the books of
account by spreading the same proporticnately over the effective iife of the contract.

Emplovee Benefits ;

a) All short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounied amount, as fiability {(accrued
expense), after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset {prepaid expense).

by Company's contribution to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan, is charged 1o the
statement of profit and loss.

c) Gratuily liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

d) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit method.

) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not

) Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incurrence of any such obligation.

. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax : .
Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from ‘timing differences' between taxable and
accounting income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted as on the balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset Is recognised and carried forward only to
the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future,

. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ¢

a) Provisions are recognised for liabilities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if; L\ Y
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(iy the Company has a present cbligation as a result of a past event,
{iiy a probable ouiflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, and
{iiiy the amount of obligation can reliably be estimated.

Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only
when it is virfually certain that the reimbursement wili ultimately be received.,
by Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of:
(i) a present obligation arising on past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to seitie the abligation,
{iiy a present obligation, when no reliable estimate is possible, and
(#) a possible obliation arising from past events, where the probabiity of outflow of resources is not
remote,
¢} Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
d} Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Prior Peried ltems

Prior Period #ems are disclosed separately in the statement of profit and loss for the year, keeping in
view their materiality and the past method of accounting.

Exceptional and Extra-ordinary lfems:
Exceptional and extra-ordinary items of the Company during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.

M



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in thousand of 2, unless otherwise stated)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised and Issued share capital:

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (PY Rs. 10/-) each 4,00,00,000 4,00,000.00 4,00,00,000 40,00,000.00

Subscrihed and paid-up share capital:

Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid-up 3,97,50,000 3,87,500.00 3,97,50.000 3,97,500.00
Total 3,87,50,000 3,97.5C0.00 3,87,50,000 3,87,500.00
Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beqinning and at the end of the reporting period:
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,87,60,000 3,87,500.00 3.97,50,000 3,87,600.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,87,50,000 3,97.500.00 3,97,50,000 3,87,500.00

Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitied to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annuat General Meeting.

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distribution to equity shareholders
was Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion {o the number of equity shares held
by the sharehoiders,

Detaits of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
No. of
Shares %.of No. of Shares % of
heid Holding held Holding
Name of the shareholder
A. Columbia Trading Co. Ltd. 22,80,175 573% 22,806,176 573%
B. Kaveen Gupta 87,386,310 21.98% 32,91,000 8.28%
C. S.P.Gupta - - 92,58,790 23.30%
D. Mrs. Sheel Gupta 22.80,750 5.61% 17,068,150 4.29%
E. Star Light Credit India Ltd. 42,867,500 10.71% 42,57,500 10.71%
F. Vipul Gupta 84,37,080 21.22% 29,981,000 7.53%
G. VLS Finance Limited” 895,84 ,824 24.14% 95,94,824 24.14%
(* Under dispute)
Details of shares held by promoters in the Company
31/03/2025 31/03/2024

No. of

Shares % of No. of Shares %.of
Name of the shareholder held Holding held Holding
A. Ananya Gupta & Kaveen Gupta 5,30,000 1.34% 5,320,000 1.34%
B. Mrs. Babita Gupta 17,80,000 4.48% 17,80,000 4.48%
C. WMr. Kaveen Gupta 87,365,310 21.98% 32,681,000 8.28%
D. Kaveen Gupta (HUF) 4,865,000 117% 4,865,000 1.47%
E. Mrs. Monisha Gupta 14,15,000 3.56% 14,15,000 3.56%
F. Mr. S.P.Gupta - - 92,598,790 23.30%
G. Mrs, Sheel Gupta 17,068,150 4.29% 17,06,150 4.28%
H. S.P. Gupta (HUF) - - 15,311,600 4.10%
I. Mrs. Sheel Gupta 5,22,6800 1.32% 5,22,600 1.32%
J. Mr. Vipul Gupta 84,37,080 21.22% 29,814,000 7.53%
K. Columbia Trading Co. Lid. 22,80,176 573% 22,80,176 5.73%



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in thousand of , unless otherwise stated)

4. RESERVES & SURPLUS

A. Capital Reserves
Cpening Balance
Closing Balance Total (A)

B. Other Reserves
General Reserves
Openirg Balance
Closing Balance Total (B)

C. Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening Balance
Add : Net Profit / {Net Loss) for the current year
Ciosing Balance
Add: Appropriations
Closing Balance Total (B}

31/03/2025

80,000.GC
~ 7 80,600.00

30.00
.00

1,258,973.50
59,204.44
1,318,177.63

1,.318,177.93

Total (A + B+ C) 1,398,207.53

5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

31/03/2024

8000000
80,000.00

30.00
30.00

1,196,341.39
6263211
1,258,973.50

1,958,373.50
1,339,003.50

In line with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Accounting for Taxes on Income"”
components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as on st April, 2024 and 31st March, 2025 are given as under;

01/0412024 For the Year Reversing 31/03/2025
Deferred Tax Assets
A. Gratuity Provision 3,862.47 3,441.92 - 7,304.39
B. Provision For Leave Encashment 828,77 1,061.72 - 1,880.50
C. Provision For Bonus {Good work reward} 957.62 - 42.42 915.20
Total {A) 5,648.86 4,503.64 42,42 10,110.08
Deferred Tax Liabilities
A. Depreciation 163,503.52 9,5685.14 - 173,088.66
Total (B) 163,503.52 9,685.14 - 173,088.66
Net Deferred Tax Assets Total (A - B) 157,854.66 5,081.50 -42.42 162,978.58
6. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 31/03/2025 31103/2024
Unsecured, considered good
A. Security Deposits 89,405.00 89,420.00
89,405.00 89,420.00
7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS
: 3110372025 31/03/2024
A. Provision for Empioyee Benefits
a.  Gratuity 23,804.89 21,215.4¢
b. Leave Encashment 5,613.64 5,376.37
29,518.54 - 26,591.86



SUNAIR MOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in thousand of T, unless ctherwise stated)

8.

9.

TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - 3,520.22
enferprises (refer note below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 23,960.78 22,509.09
and small enterprises (refer note below)
23,960.78 26,029.31
Particulars{Outstanding from invoice date) 3110372025 31/03/2024
(i) MSME
Less than 1 year - 3.520.22
1-2 years - -
2-3 years " -
More than 3 years - -
- 3,520.22
{ify Others
Less than 1 year 23,866.63 18,285.23
1-2 years 94.15 703.65
2-3 years - .
More than 3 years - -
23,960.78 22,509.09
(i) Disputed dues-MSME
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
(iv) Disputed dues-Others
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years " -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
Total 23,960.78 26,029.31
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
A. Other Current Liabilities 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
a. TDS Payable 1,240.13 2,698.58
b. DVAT Payable 454 44 438.63
¢, GST Payable 23,771.28 3,582.09
d. Confribution to Provident Fund 863.08 §10.31
e. ESI 22.10 23.82
f. Advance Sub-License fee 86,997.27 85,2687.27
9. Other Expenses Payable 7,457.94 8,401.72
Total 120,946.24 101,324.41
10. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
A, Provision for Employee Benefits 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
a. Salary & Reimbursements 5,816.20 5,297.59
b. Good-work Reward payable 3,200.00 3,247.46
€. Provision for Gratuity 1,634.92 1,457.84
d. Provision for Leave Encashment 596.49 658.01
Total 11,747.60 10,660.90

\\ Q\.
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Ail amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

13. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
A. Capital Advances
(Unsecured, considered good)
a. Greater Noida Industrial Development Authority

Total (A}
B. Other L.oans & Advances
{Unsecured, considered good)
a. Income Tax Refundzable
k. Cash Seized by 1.T. Depariment
c. Other Advances
Total (B)
Total (A + B)

14. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSET
A. Security Deposits
{Unsecured, considered good)
a. Security deposit to service providers
b. Security deposit for let-out properties
¢. Securify deposit with Government Agencies for utilities

Total
15, INVENTORIES

31/03/2025

550.00

550.00

20,250.27
3,000.00
79,435.00

102,694.27
~103,244,27

31/03/12025

2,406.05
3,120.00
7.227.31

12,753.36

A, Raw Materials & Components {Valued at lower of Cost or N 31/03/2025

a. Food
b. Beverage
¢. Operating Equipments

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES
a) Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good
- which have significant increase in credit risk
- which are credit impaired
b) Disputed trade receivables
- considered good
~ which have significant increase in credit risk
- which are credit impaired

Below table represents the trade receivables ageing:
Particulars
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
Less than 6 months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

{ii} Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful
Less than 6 months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

At

1,852.00
3,384.88
69,156.54

74,393.42

31/03/2025
36,007.74

36,807.74

32,689.40

5.41
4,202.94

36,907.74

36,807.74

31/03/2024

550.00

550.00

34,546.C0
3.000.0C
16,235.00

53,781.00
§4,331.00

3110312024

2,406.05
3,120.00
7.227.31

12,753.36

31/03/12024
1,400.93
3,347.81

68,729.71

73,478.46

31/03/2024
26,783.97

26,783.97

21,883.88

4,789.98

26,783.97

26,783.97



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31/03/2025 3110372024
A. Balances with banks
In Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks 47,808.24 13,411.02
(There are no earmarked balances,
margin money, security  against
borrowings, guarantees and other
B. Cash on hand 3,764.26 2,803.43
C. Bank Deposits
{Maiurity mere than 12 months from 558.32 521.37
Balance Sheet date)
Total 52,130.82 16,735.82
18. SHORT TERM. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Other Loans & Advances 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
{Unsecured, considered good)
A, Advance License Fees (NDMC) (Prepaid) 18,932.57 18,031.02
B. Advance (Staff & Consultants) 800.00 800.60
C. Prepaid Expenses (Hotel) (Licence fee L3 & L.5) 7,622.26 13,567.15
D. Advance for assets 25,485.30 25,465.30
Total 52,820.12 57,863.47
19. Other Current Assets
31/0312025 31/03/2024
(Unsecured, Considered good)
A. GST input Available 2,354.30 4,058.89
B. Dividend Receivable 2.88 -
Total 2,357.18 4,058.89
20. INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Facilities and Services Charges for Hotel Complex
Rooms 447,756.08 427,628.91
Food & Beverage 231,483.20 233,778.58
Less: Excise Duty - ,
Revenue from Cperations (Net) Total 679,249,28 661,407 49
A. Rooms .. 447,756.08 _A427.628.91
Total {(A) 447,756.08 427,628,91
B . Food & Beverage
i. Food 83,069.07 86,195.94
ii, Beverage
- Soft Beverage 2,368.39 2,424.08
- Liguor 15,406.50 17,775.29 17,448.55 19.872.83
iii. Banguet Fees 4,315.64 548843
iv. Other Operating Departments 15,336.47 13,982.49
v. Sub License Fees 110,986.72 108,239.09
Total (B) 231,493.20 233,778.58
Income from Operations {Gross) Total (A + B) 679,249.28 661,407.49

N



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise staled)

21. QTHER INCOME

22. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

23,

24,

=

PIOCZErXRe—IOMMmMoOm

. interest income

-OnFBR's

. Interest on Income tax refund
. Capital Gain on Sale of Mutual Funds .
. Dividends received on share / Mutual Funds

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets

Gain / (Loss) on Foreign Exchange Curr. Fluctuation

. Miscellaneous Income

Commission
Cther income

Rent Received (Mobile Towers at Roof}
Rent Received for Warehouse (WHO)

. Used Coocking Oif

. Electricity & Water Charges

. Garbage & Handling Charges

Scrap sale
income From Trave! Desk

. Guest Transport Charges

A. Opening Stock of Raw Material

Add:- Purchases

l.ess : Closing Stock of Raw Material
Cost of Raw Material Consumed

Details of Materials Consumed

A.
B.

Food
Beveragesl

Total

booked as an expense under its relevant expenditure

head.

COST OF UTILITIES AND HOSPITALITY SERVICES

A.
B.

A.

Emmo

Laundry Cost
Health Ciub

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Sataries, wages and bonus
a, Salary

b. Bonus

¢. Exgratia Paid

d. Gratuity

. Salary to Directors
. Contributions to:

a. ESl

b. Provident Fund

c. Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses
Contractor Labour Charges
Security Services
Manpower Quisourced

75,728.01
3,268.20
42111

3,603.68

5,821.45
215.6%

1.062.24

Total

31/03/2025

36.96
488.64
20,685.32
3.20
34.38
1,353.78
385.85
204.31
2,870.74
810.00
14.74
4,681.71
455.00
26.31
700.00
1,706.50

34,456.51

31/03/2025

4748.75

46,927.05

51,675.80
5,236.88

46,438.92

42,857.78
3781.14

46,438.82

31/03/2025
785.88
184.07

978.95

31/0312025

82,820.99
5,400.00

7,098.19
4,331.88
7.453.31
5,876.17
21,144.81

T 134,326.35

74,268.83
3,247.48
389.19

7,300.04

5,823.90
438.13

1.970.18

31/03/2024

21.37
1,743.27
14,036.67
2.59
111.13
20.85

300.50
135.17
1,343.28
26.83
5,294.18
450.00
1.31
600.00
1,686.72

__ 2578207

31/03/2024

4,532.16

4893465

53,466.81
4,748.75

48,718.06

43,901.18
4,816.90

48,718.086

31/03/2024
904.55
183.5¢

1,088.15

31/03/2024

85,205.51
6,000.00

8,230.22
3,886.36
6,938.89
4,589,56
20,278.00

135,148.54



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

25. OTHER EXPENSES
A. Power & Fuel

B.
C.

NXXE<CHOAPIVOZErX&~IONMO

AA,
AR,
AC,
AD.
AE.
AF.
AG.
AH,

Rent

Repairs & maintenance
a. Plant & machinery

b. Building

¢. Others

. Insurance

Advertising & Sales Promotion
Director Traveling

. Communication Expenses

internet Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Legal & Professional Fees
Licence fee

Banquet Expenses

. Cleaning Supply

Commission on Rooms

Credit Card Charges

Guest Supplies

Guest Supply & Relation Expenses

Guests Entertainment & Business Promotion
Laundry & Dry Cleaning

Linen

Music & Entertainment

Local Transportation & Vehicle Maintenance

. Membership Fees & Subscription

AGM & Conference Charges
Postage/Courier/Telegram
R.O.C. Fee

Sitting Fees

Uniform

Payment To Auditors
Rates & Taxes

GST Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses
Balances Written Off

STT Paid

Details of Payment to Auditors

24,135.13
83,010.92
31,118.63

As Auditor:
- Statutary Audit Fee
- Tax Audit Fee

26. FINANCE COST
A, Interest paid on:

Taxes
B. Bank Charges

27, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Total

Total

A. Depreciation of Tangible Assets

Trqtal
53

31/03/2025
86,793.95
4,650.00

138,264.68
3.628.33
2,004.96
4,007.58

476.96
878.00
2,285.08
81,170.70
27,780.38
6,187.20
1,286.23
22,248.86
3,426.84
9680.15
7,479.61
1,563.16
186.47
355.27
420.00
3,371.40
137.39
4.43
33.84
76.34
115.00
22.47
528.00
113.33
2,952.13
602.77

0.68

412,852.27

450.00
78.00
528.00

31/03/2025
1.8C
42.66
44.56
31/03/2025

34,319.34

34,319.34

21,904.60

3110312024
80,426.38
2,610.00

34,093.59

44,211.56
100,299.74
2,891.80
1,981.55
10,789,562
608.42
988.80
2,492.29
87,289.50
26,155.40
3,3735.13
1,616.39
33,548.35
2,021.17
11,756.26
7,260.81
1,510.03
226.12
838.46
420.00
3,616.80
127.55
3.07
36.53
67.53
241.45
40385

2,583.54
4,779.83

380,866.04

325.00
78.65
403.65

31/03/2024
22.50
38.13
61.63

31/03/2024

33,911.80

33,911.80



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

28. DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SQCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

31/03/2025 31/103/2024
A, Gross Amount required o be spent by the company during the year 1,511.92 745.26
B. Amount spent during the year on; Yet to be Yet to be
(i} On purposes other than {i) above in Cash paid in cash In Cash pald in cash
- Contribution for Medical Relief to poor
- Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Soclety 1,511.85 - 745.30 -
Total (A) 1,511.95 - 745.30 -
€. Contribution paid to trust controlled by the related party
- N.A . . - -
Total (B) - - - -
Total (A + B) 1,511.95 - 745.30 -
29. EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) 31/03/2025 31/03/12024
Total operations for the year
Profit / {loss) after tax 59,204.44 62,632.11
Less: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Net profit / (loss) for calculation of Basic EPS 59,204.44 62,632.11
Net profit as above 50,204.44 62,632.11
Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Add : Adjustments for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares - -
Net profit / {loss) for calculation of Diluted EPS 58,204,44 62,632.11
Weighted average number of equity shares in calcuiating
Basic EPS 39,750,000 39,750,000
Effect of dilution:
Convertible preference sharaes {(numbers) - -
Convertible bonds {numbers) - -
Stock option granted under ESOP - -
Weighted average no. of equity shares in caiculating Diluted EPS 38,750,000 38,750,000
{a) Basic 1.49 1.58
(b} Diluted 1.49 1.58
30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
iy Contingent Liabilities
A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis Nil Nil
B. Guarantees Nil Nil
C. Bilis of exchange discounted with banks Nil Nil
D. Tax demand disputed in appeals Nil Nil
E. Others (%) 80,000.00 (%) 80,000.00 (%)
not due as per the legal opinion received by the Company.
OMP and Enf{c) have heen filed in the matter.Refer to Note
No. 38.
(i} Commitments
A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital accounts and not provided for 5,000.00 5,000.00
B. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil il
C. Other commitments Nil Nil

B4



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 20258
{All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

31. Related Party Disclosure

In accordance with AS-14 “Related Party Disclosures” the names of related parties along with aggregate
amount of transactions and year end balances with them are given as follows:

A. Related parties and their relationshp
1) Controlling shareholders
The Company is controlied via the shareholding arrangement outlined in Note 3.

2) Key management personne! and their relatives
‘A number of key management personnei, or their related parties, hold positions in cther entities
that result in them having contro! or significant influence over those entities. A number of these
personnel transacted with the Gompany during the reporting period. The terms and conditions of
the transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable
than those available, or those which might reasonably be expected to be available, in respect. of
similar transactions with non-key management personnel related entities on an arm's iength basis,

Name of key management personnel, their relatives and entities over which they have control or
significant influence with whom transaction were entered during the year or balance was
outstanding at the balance sheet date are as follows:

a) Key management personnel

- Mr. Kaveen Gupta : Whole Time Director
- Mr. Vipul Gupta : Whole Time Director
- Mrs. Sheel Gupta : Directors
- Mr. Vipin Jain : CFO
- Mrs. Neha Rajput : Company Secretary
- Mr. R C Dubey : Independent Director
b} Relatives of Key Management Personnel
S.P Gupta : Upto 29/09/2024
S.P Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Kaveen Gupta is Karta of HUF
Kaveen Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Kaveen Gupta is Karta of HUF
Vipul Gupta (HUF} : Mr. Vipul Gupta is Karta of HUF
Mrs. Menisha Gupta : Wife of Mr. Vipul Gupta
Mrs. Babita Gupta : Wife of Mr. Kaveen Gupia

Enterprises where Key Managerial Personnel alonig with their relatives exercise significant influence:
a) Subsidiary Companies ; Sun Aero Limited

b} Asscciate Companies / Firm : Pushpanjali Trexim Pvt. Limited
Unigue LifeStyle Pvt. Ltd.

Key management personnel and relatives compensation
Transaction with related parties

The details of the related-party transactions entered into by the Company for the years ended 3% March
2025 and 31 March 2024 are as follows:

Particulars 31/03/2025 3110312024
Amount Amount
B. Expenses
i} Rent 4,650.00 2,610.00
ii) Director Remuneration 5,400.00 6,000.00
iii) Sitting Fees 115.00 -
iv} Salary 3,712.29 3,263.71



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All armounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

31.2 Transactions during the year*

Key Management

Enterprises under the
contro! of key management
personnel (KMP) of entity

Particulars Personnel having joint control over the Total
Helding Company and their
refatives
31/03/2025 | 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2025 | 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2025 | 31/03/2024
Rent
- Monisha Gupta 750.00 390.00 - - 750.00 390.00
- Vipul Gupta {(HUF) 750.00 390.00 - - 750.00 390.00
~ Kaveen Gupta (HUF) 750.00 390.00 - - 750.00 380.00
- Babita Gupta 750.00 380.00 - - 750.00 380.00
- 8.P. Gupta (HUF) 1,650.00 1,050.00 - - 1,650.00 1,050.00
4,650.00 2,610.00 - - 4,650.00 2,610.00
Director's Remuneration
- Kaveen Gupta 2,700.00 3,300.00 - - 2,700.00 3,300.00
- Vipul Gupta 2,760.00 2,700.00 - - 2.700.0¢ 2,700.00
5,400.00 6,000.00 - - 5,400.00 6,000.00
Sitting Fees
- Sheel Gupta 65.00 - - - 65.00 -
- Mr. R C Dubey 50.00 - - - 50.00 -
115.00 - - - 115.00 -
Salary
- Vipin Jain 2,477.57 2,082.74 - - 2,477.57 2,082.74
- Neha Rajput 1,234.73 1,170.97 - - 123473 1,170.97
3,712.29 3,263.71 - - 3,712.29 3,263.71

Terms of conditions of transactions with refated parties
The transactions with related parties are made in the ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent {o those that prevail in
arm's length transactions. The settlement of outstanding balances as at year end occurs in cash,

B¢




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

32. Gratuity & Other Post-employment Benefits
The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuity plan. However, every empioyee who has
completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on departure at 15 days' salary (last drawn basic
salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months on projected unit

The following tabies summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss
account and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

. Gratuity
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
1. Change in present value of obligation Amount Amount
a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 22,673.33 16,500.83
b) Acguisition adjustment - -
¢} Interest cost 1,619.92 1,231.83
d) Past service cost - -
e) Current service cost 1,634.92 1,457.84
f} Curtailment cost / (Credit) - -
g) Seitelement cost / (Credit) - -
h) Benefit paid -637.20 -1,127.53
i) Actuariai {gain) / Loss on obligation 248,77 4,610.27
j) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 25,539.81 22,673.33

2. Changes in fair vaiue of plan assets
&) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - -
b) Acquisition adjustment - -
¢) Expected return on plan assets - -
d) Contribution - -
e) Benefits paid - -
f) Actuarial gain / {loss) on plan assets - -
g) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - -

3. Fair value of plan assets
a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - -
b) Acquistion adjustment - -
¢) Actual return on plan assets - -
d) Contributions - -
e) Benefits paid - -
f) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - -
g) Funded status -25,539.81 -22,673.33
hy Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets - -

4. Actuarial gain / losses recognized

a) Actuarial gain / (foss) for the period- obligation -248.77 -4,610.27
b) Actuarial {(gain) / loss for the period- plan assets - -
¢) Total {gain) / loss for the period 248.77 4,610.27
d) Actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the period 248.77 4,610.27
e) Unrecognized actuarial {(gains) losses at the end of the period - -
f) Experience Adjustment on Present Value of Obligation-Loss/(G -365.12 745.83

5



10.

12
The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 25,539.81
b) Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period -

¢) Funded status / Difference -25,539.81
dy Excess of actual over estimated -

e) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) / losses -

fy Net assets / (liability) recognized in balance sheet -25,539,81
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

a) Current service cost 1,634,982
b} Past service cost -

¢} Interest cost 1,619.99
d) Expected return on plan assets -

e) Curtailment cost / (Credit) -

f) Settlement cost / (credit) -

@) Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period 248.77
h) E£xpenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 3,503.68

Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 25,539.81
b} Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 22,673.33
¢) Benefit paid _ -

d) Actual return on plan assets -

e) Acquisition adjustment -

f} Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 3,503.68
Amount for the current period

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 25,539.81
b) Fair value of plan assets -

¢} Surplus / (Deficit) -25539.81
d) Experience adjustment on plan fiabilities (loss) / gain -248.77
e) Experience adjustment on plan assets (loss) / gain -
Movement in the liahility recognized in the balance sheet

a) Opening net liahility 22,411.23
) Expense as above 3,503.68
c) Benefits paid -

d) Actual return on plan assets -

e) Acquisition adjustment -

f) Closing net liability 25,914.90

Major categories of plan assets {(as percentage of total plan assets)

a) Government of India Securities -
b) State Government Securities -
¢) High quality corporate bonds -
d) Equity shares of listed companies -
&) Property -
f} Special deposite scheme -
g} Funds managed by insurer -
h} Bank balance (For Gratuity) -

22.673.33

-22,673.33

-22,673.33

1,457 .84

1,231.83

4.810.27
7,300.04

22,673.33
16,500.83

7,300.04

22,673.33
-22,673.33
-4,610.27

15,111.19
7,300.04

22,411.23

JN Total -
Y
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11. The principal assumption used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company’s plans are

shown below:

a)
b)
c)

31/03/2025
Amount
Discount rate 6.50

Rate of return on Plan Assets -
Salary Escalation 6.00

ll. Leave Encashment 31/03/2025

a

O O

)
)
)
)
)

0

f)
)
)

= (o]

)
)

Amount
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 8,034.38
Acquisition adjustment -
Interest cost 431.15
Past service cost -
Current service cost 996.49
Curtailment cost / (Credit) -
Settelement cost / (Credit) -
Benefit paid -486.49
Actuariai {gain) / l.oss cn obligation -365.40

3110312024
Amount
7.15

6%

31/03/2024
Amount
4,584 .64

343,03

558.01

-530.44
869.14

Present value of obligaticn as at the end of the period 6,610.13

6,034.38

2. Changes in fair value of plan assets

a)
b}
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period -
Acquisition adjustment -
Expected return on plan assets -
Contribution -
Benefits paid -
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets -

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period -

3. FEair value of plan assets

a)
b)
c)
d)
€)
f)
g)
h)

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period -
Acquistion adjustment -
Actual return on plan assets -
Contributicns -
Benefits paid -
Fair value of plan assels at the end of the period -
Funded status -5,6810.13
Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets -

4, Actuarial gain / [osses recognized

a) Actuarial gain / (loss) for the period- obligation -365.40
by Actuarial (gain) / loss for the period- plan assets -

<)

Total (gain) / toss for the period -365.40

d) Actuarial (gain)} / loss recognized in the period -365.40

e)

f)

Unrecognized actuarial {gains) losses at the end of the period -
Experience Adjustment an Present Value of Obligation-Loss/(G -516.15

5. The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis

a)
b)
)
)
)

T QO

f)

Fresent value of obligation as at the end of the period 6,610.13
Fair Value of ptan assets at the end of the Pericd -
Funded status / Difference -8,610.13
Excess of actual over estimated -
Unrecognized actuarial (gains) / losses -

Net assets / {liability) recognized in balance sheet 8,610.13
54

-6,034.38

869.14

8968.14
969.14

-172.10

6,034.38

-6,034.38

6,034.38
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11.

:4:
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

a) Current service cost 066.49 658.01
b) Past service cost - -
¢) Interest cost 431.15 343.03
d) Expected return on plan assets - -
e) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - -
fy Settlement cost / (credit) - -
@) Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period -365.40 89690.14
h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 1,062.24 1,970.18
Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss

a} Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 6,610.13 6,034.38
b} Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 6,034.38 4,594 .64
¢} Benefit paid -486.49  -530.44

d) Actual return on plan assets - -
&) Acquisition adjustment - -
) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 1,062.24 1,970.18
Ampount for the current period

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period §,610.13 £,034.38
b} Fair vaiue of plan assetsas at the end of the period - ~
c} Surplus / (Deficit) -5,610.13 -6,034.38
d) Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (loss) / gain 365.40 -888.14
e) Experience adjustment on plan assets (loss) / gain - -
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet

a) Opening net liability 6,034.38 4,594.64
b) Expense as above 1,062.24 1,970.18
¢} Benefits paid -486.49 -530.44
d} Actual return on plan assets - -
&) Acquisition adjustment - -
f} Closing net liability 6,610.13 6,034.38

Major cateqories of plan assets {as percentage of total plan assets)

a) Government of India Securities -
b) State Government Securities -
¢) High guality corporate bonds -
d) Equity shares of listed companies -
&) Property -
f) Special deposite scheme -
g) Funds managed by insurer -
h) Bank balance {(For Gratuity) -

The principal assumption used in determining leave encashment obligation for the
Company's plans are shown below:;
31/03/2025 31/0312024
Amount Amount
a) Discount rate 8.50 7.16
b} Rate of return on Plan Assets - -
¢} Salary Escalation 5.00 6%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment

market. Previous year figures have not bec;p given since those are not fully available.
o



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in thousand of , unless otherwise stated)

33. Segment Reporting
The business segments of the Company have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard AS-17 on "Segment
Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, taking into account the crganisational structure and
different risk and return of these segments. The Company's reportable business segments consists of the following:

a) Hote! Business

b) Commercial Centre

c) Portfolio Management :

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the following additional policies for segment
reporting :

a} Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating business
activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to enterprise as a whole that cannot be aliocated to
a segment on reascnable basis, have been disclosed separately under the column “unallocable”.

b} Segment assets and liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Assets and liabilities that
cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed under the column “unallocable”.

Hotei Commetcial Portfolio Total

Particulars Business Business Management Amount
Segment Revenue
- Revenue including other income 582,020.55 110,996.72 20,688.52 713,705.79
Net Sales / Income from Operations {A) 582,020.55 110,998.72 20,688.52 713,705.79
Segment Expenses
Allocable Expenses
-Consumption of Stores, Provisions

& Beverages and Purchase of Mutual Funds 47 418.87 - - 47 418.87
-Employee benefit expenses 134,326.35 - - 134,326.35
-Operating / Administration Expenses 412,852.27 - - 442 85227
-Finance Cost 44.56 - - 44 .56
-Expenditure on CSR Activity 1,511.95 - - 1,511.95

(B)  596,154.00 - - 596,154.00

Segment Resuit (A-B) -14,133.45 110,896.72 20,688.52 117,551.79
Less : Depreciation 34,319.34
Profit before Taxation 83,232.45
l.ess : Tax Expense for the year 24,028.01
Profit after Taxation 59,204.44
Segment Assets {including Misc.

expenditure and debit balance of

Profit & Loss Alc) 1,152,658.14  1,081,6056.53 - 2,234,264 687
Segment Liabilities {including long

term liabilities) - 352,426.73 86,130.00 - 438,556.73
Total Carrying Amount of fixed assets 1,175,5612.26 - - 1,176,5612.26
Total Depreciation on fixed assets 34,103.36 215.98 - 34,318.34

The business segments of the Company viz., hotel business and commercial centre are both focated at one
geographicat place only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicabie to the company.

Gy
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

34. Ratio
0,
S Particulars Measures [31/03/2025{31/03/2024 ./“ Reason for variance
No. Variance

1 [Current Ratio Times 1.40 1.30 0.08 [The improvement in the current ratio
suggests better short-term liquidity due
fo an increase in current assets or a
decrease in current fiabilities. This
indicates a stronger ability to meet short-
{erm obligations.

2  |Debt-Equity Ratio Times N.A. N.A, - N A.

3 {Return on equity ratio Percentage 0.03 0.04 (0.09)|The decline in the return on equity ratio
indicates a decrease in profitability
relative to shareholders’ equity due to
jower net income.

4 {Inventory turnover ratio Times 0.63 0.67 (0.08){The ratic has decreased during the
current year due to decrease in the cost
of good sold

5 |Trade receivablesiTimes 21.33 2258 (0.06){The ratic has decreased during the

turnover ratio current year due to increase in the
average trade receivables during the
year as compared o previous year.

8 |Trade payables turnoveriTimes 1.88 1.82 (0.02){The ratic has decreased during the

ratio current year due to decrease in the
credit Purchases and average payables
during the year as compared to previous
year.

7 {Net capital turnover ratic  {Times 10.96 18.17 (0.32)|The ratic has decreased during the
current year due to increase in the credit
sales and working capital during the year
as compared to previous year.

8 INet profit ratio Times 0.08 0.09 {0.08}|The ratio has decreased during the
current year due to decrease in the profit
earned during the year as compared to
previous year.

8 |Reiurn on capital| Times 0.04 0.04 0.05 |The ratio has increased due to increase

employed in garnings bhefore interest in the current
year in comparison {o previous year

10 |Return on investment Percentage 0.00 0.00 0.61 |The ratio has increased due to increase
in return on investment and initial
investment,

S. No. Ratios Numerator Denominator

1 |Current ratic Current assets Current liabilities

2 iDebt-equity ratio Total debt = long term borrowings +  [Shareholder's equity

3 Debt service coverage|Earning for debt service = Net profit|Debt service = Inlerest paymentis + principal

ratio before taxes + non-cash operating repaymenis

4 |Return on equity ratio Net profits after taxes — preference Average shareholder's equity

§ |Inventory turnover ratic Cost of goods sold Average inventory = (Cpening + closing balance /

g Trade receivablesiNet credit sales Average accounts receivables

turnover ratio

7 Trade payables turnoveriNet credit purchases Average frade payables

ratio

8 Net capital turnover ratio  iNet sales Average working capital (i.e. total current assets

less fotal current liahilities)

9 |Net profit ratic Net profit Net szles

10 Return on capitaliEarming before interest and taxes|Capital employed = Tangible net worth + total debt

employed (EBIT) + deferred {ax liability

11 [Return on invesiment Income generated from investments i Time weighted average investments

G2




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of €, unless otherwise stated)

35.

36.

37.

Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has requested its various suppliers, who may he the enterprises covered under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to furnish the relevant registration
certificate under that Act, but the said information is yet to be received till date; and hence, in absence
of the same, (disciosures as required u/s 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
{MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding:-(a) Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
suppliers as at the end of the accounting year; interest paid during the year | Amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed date during accounting year; Interest due and payable for
the delay in making payment; Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting year ; and
further interest remainning due and payable even in succeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid {o small enterprises, have not been given. The company is making efforts
to get confirmations from the suppliers as regard to their status under the said Act.

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
(i} The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be
shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of each accounting year.
-Principai amount due to micre and smati enterprises - 3,620.22
-interest due ¢n above - -

{iiy The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year, - -

(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act - -

(W) The amount of further interest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expendifure under section 23 of the MSMED
Act 2006,

Details of Reqgistration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

{h Presently, the MCA site does not show any charge registered over the movable assets of the
Company including current assets.

EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMS

NG exceptional or extra-ordinary items of revenue nature occurred during the year (PY Nil}. Hence no
disclosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unjess otherwise stated)

38. Applications filed by the Company and VLS Finance Ltd (a registered shareholder of the Company) u/s

39.

40,

34 of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1996, challenging the Award therein given are pending for
disposal since the year 2015 by the Hon'bie Delhi High Court as on the date of signing of these annual
financial statements. Similarly, the second petition for enforcement of the said Award filed by VLS
Finance Ltd in the Hon'ble Delhi High Court is also pending adjudication as an undertaking has been
given by VLS Finance Ltd not to press the execution till the original cross petitions are decided. The
earfier such petition filed by VLS Finance Ltd was dismissed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court on
16/08/2017. The award contained directions to the Company / its directors to refund to VLS Finance Lid
the forfeited security deposit of Rs. 8 Crores in terms of the MOU dated 11/03/1995 with due interest.
However, as per legal opinicn received by the Company no such amount is refundable particularly when
the Hen'ble Company Law Board vide its order dated 04/08/2013 has dismissed the Company Petition of
VLS Finance Lid and decided in favour of the Company.

SFIO has filed a petition u/s 241(2) along with sections 246 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 before
the Hon'ble NCLT against the Company and others which is also pending adjudication. Similarly, SFIO
has also filed a complaint on the same subject as is before the Hon'ble NCLT in the court of the learned
ASJ {Special Court) Dwarka New Delhi, also still pending as on this date.

In the FIRs filed by the State on the complaints of VLS Finance Ltd. against the Company and others,
charges have been framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings inciuding revisions are stll
pending at different stages. Further Company has filed 2 FIRs bearing no. 326/04 & 380/05 against V.S
Finance Ltd in which chargesheets were filed, the challenge to the same by VLS has been dismissed il
Supreme Court vide order dated 25/07/2025.

Income-tax provision has been made in the books of account as per legal advice received by the
Company for assessment of various incomings and outgoings.

Sundry Debtors / Creditors, if any, are not reconciled due to non-receipt of corresponding statements of
account from them. Necessary adjustments, if any, in the bocks of account will be made at the time of
reconciliation of the same.



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of Z, unless otherwise stated)

41. MCA notification dated 24th March 2021 for amendments fo Schedule iii disclosures which are not

(i

()

(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Title deed of immovable property not held in the name of company - All properties are held by company
in its own name,

Details of Benami Property and its proceedings- Not applicable as there are no proceedings which have
been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

Wilifull defaulter - 'The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institutions.

Relationship with struck off companies - "The Company has not entered into any transactions with the
companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
and do not have any outstanding balance as at the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Compliance with number of fayers of companies - 'The Company has complied with the number of
layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Compliance with approved scheme of arrangement - 'The Company has not been approved any
Scheme of Arrangements by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies

Act, 2013,

(vii)

Details of crypto currency or Virtual currency - ‘The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto
currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

(viii) The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to Corporate Social Responsibility

(ix)

(CSR), are applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has constituted a CSR Committee
and is undertaking CSR activities in compliance with the requirements of the Act and the rules made
thereunder,

The company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment, Segments have been identified
taking into account the nature of the products, the differeing risks and returns, the organisation structure
and internal reporting system as specified by Accounting Standard 17 issued by the The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

42. All the figures have been rounded off {0 nearest rupees.

43. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Previous year figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reciassified, wherever considered

necessary.
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES. (KAVEEN GUPTA)  (VIPUL GUPTA)
Firm Regn Neo. 004985N Executive Director  Executive Director
Chartered Accountants {DIN-00204805) (DIN-00204638)
Cdl- PN <)
(ANIL SOOD) : {VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place : New Delhi Partner G5 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Dated : 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939 M.No.-FCS 8984 {M No. A-26118)






SUN AERO LIMITED

CIN : U74899DL1993PL.C055758
Regd. Off: A-7, FIRST FLOOR, GEETANJAL! ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110 017
PHONE # (81 11) 41515250  e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

To,

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Members

The Directors of your company have pleasure in presenting the 32nd Annual Report of the Company and
its financial accounts for the year ended on 31st March, 2025.

1.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Company's financial performance for the year under review along with previous vears figures are
given hereunder :

Curr.Year Prev.Year
31/03/2025 31/03/2024

Net Sales / income from;

a} Business Operations 1,78,64 467 1,28,93,768
b)Y Other Income 0 11,49,229
Total Income 1,78,64,467 1,40,42,997
Profit / (Loss) before Interest & Depreciation -42,48,309 7,82,500
Less: Finance cost (Interest) 0 1,100
Profit / {Loss) before Depreciation -42.,48,809 7,81,480
Less: Depreciation 0 6,78,157
Profit / (Loss} after Depreciation but before Tax -42 48,809 1,02,333

Less: Tax Saving /{Expense)
a) Current Income-tax - -
b} Earlier year(s) Adjustment of [Income-tax 17,720 (96,634)

¢y Deferred Tax -3,23,361 68,970
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax -36,43,168 1,29,987
Dividend {including interim, if any, and Final) - -

Net Profit/ (L.oss} after Dividend & Tax -38,43,168 1,298,997
Amount transferred to General Reserve - -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet -39,43,168 1,29,997
Earning per share (Basic) (56.33) 1.86
Earning per share {Diluted) (56.33) 1.86
DIVIDENDS

With a view to conserve funds, the Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year
2024-25

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend
declared and paid by the Company .

RESERVES
The Board of Directors do not propose any amount to be carried to any reserve,

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK
The Company is engaged in the business of Portfolio Activities and Project development.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

According to the Press Information Bureau, Governement of India, India is the World's fourth-largest
economy, has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy and is on track to become the World's
third-largest economy with a projected GDP of $7.3 trillion by 2030. india is projected to be World's
fastest growing major economy (6.3% to 6.8% in 2025-26). Further India's GDP has witnessed a
remarkable transformation over the past decade. At current prices, GDP has increased from #106.57
lakh crore in 2014-15 to an estimated ¥331.03 lakh crore in 202425, an approximate threefold rise in
just ten years. In 2024~25 alone, nominal GDP grew by 9.9% over the previous year, while real GDP
(at constant prices) increased by 6.5%, reflecting sustained economic momentum. This steep growth
reflects the country's expanding economic base and rising income levels

Further The Company has reported loss before Tax of Rs.-42 48,809/~ during the period under review
as compared to Rs.102,333/- in the previcus year. The EPS of the Company has decreased from
Rs.1.86/~ to -56.33/- during the period under review. Company is hopeful of better results in the
coming years, And company is hopeful that under changed scenerio it would be able to have better
petforamnce in coming years.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company,
which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate
and the date of this report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE
No such orders have been passed by any authority during the year under review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in 'Annexure-A' attached to this report.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the
Company's existence are quite minimal.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND [IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON [TS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as
the said provisions are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
There were no contracts or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of
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14.

156.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE
REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY
SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.
The provisicns relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report in not applicable to the Company.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nominaticn and Remuneration Committee
are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy relating to
appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178{3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Web Link of Annual Return, If Any.:-

The reporting of extract of Annuai Return in Form no. MGT-¢ had been done away with pursuant to
amendment in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.f. 28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of
Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Return is now required to be piaced on
the website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act
and link thereof is required to be given in the Board’s Report, As the Company doesn't having any
website. Therefore, no need to of publicaticn of Annual Return.

ANNUAL RETURN

The reporting of extract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-9 had been done away with pursuant to
amendment in Section ©2(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.f. 28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of
Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Return is now required to ke placed on
the wehsite of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)a) of the Acl
and [link thereof is required to be given in the Board's Report. As the Company doesn’t having any
website. Therefore, no need to of publication of Annual Return.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
The Company had 8 (eight) Board meetings dated 02/04/2024, 02/05/2024, 17/06/2024, 31/08/2024,
26/09/2024, 30/09/2024, 15/11/2024 and 22/01/2025 during the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

in terms of Section 134(3) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, vour directors

confirm as under:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the company for
that period;

€) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities:

d} the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern bhasis; and

e) The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
periaining to faying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the company.

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Company doesn’t have any subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company.
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21.

22.

23

24,

25

26,

27

28.

29.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public falling within purview of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,2014 during the
year.Although the company has filed the Return of deposit form (annuai form) pursuant to the
Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

DIRECTORS
Mr.Vipul Gupta retire at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himseif for re-
appointment. Additional Director Mrs. Sheel Gupta is going to Regularise as a Director.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Anil Sood & Associates Chartered Accountant (firm registration no. 004985 N) New Delhi, the
Statutory Auditor of the Company were appointed as the Auditors of the Company at the 29TH
Annual general Meeting of the Company held on 10th September, 2022 pursuant to section 138 and
142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act , 2013, and the Rules made hereunder, as
amended from time to time, for period of five years till the conclusion of the 34th Annual General
Meeting , subject to the ratification by the shareholders at every Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

SHARES
a) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
by SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.
c) BONUS SHARES
The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review.
d) EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any Stock Option scheme to the employees during the year under
review,

DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143
OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

During the year under review, the statutory auditors has not reported, any instance of fraud committed
against the company by its officers or employees,under section 143(12) of the companies Act, 2013
the detail of which would need to be mentioned in the Director's Report.

SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLAGCE

Company promote the positive workplace environment for everyone, free from harassment of any
nature. And no complaint was received by the Company as there is no women employee during the
year 2024-2025 other than Director.

Status of complaints as on March 31, 2025:

Number of complaints fited during the financial year 0
Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year

Number of complaints pending at the end of the financiat year 0

DETAIL OF Extra Ordinary General Meeting
There is no Extra Ordinary General meeting held during the financial year under review,

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD ISSUED BY ICS!
Company has complied with the Secretarial Standard issued by ICSH
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30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
Not Applicable.
31. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Not applicable.
32. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,
33. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
Adequate Internal Financial Control system and checks are in place commensurate with the size of
the company and nature of its business.
34. Disclosure under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code {(IBC). 2016
There is no proceeding which is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016
during the financial yearunder review,
35. Petails of Difference between Valuation Amount on One Time Settlement and Valuation while
availing Loan from Banks and Financial Institutions.
During the year under review there has been no one time settiement of Loans taken from Banks and
Financial Institutions.
36 MATERNITY BENEFIT DETAIL AS PER SECOND AMENDMENT RULE 2025 DURING THE YEAR
UNDER REVIEW
women who have faken a career break and wish to return to the workforce. The company offers both
full-time and project-based roles, allowing women the flexibility to re-enter the job market. Cur
inclusive environment provide extended maternity leave, créche facilities,and training programmes to
women return to workplace . Further there is no there is no such request was received by the
Company from any employee during the year 2024-2025.
37 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business asscciates, consultants,
various government authorities, employees and shareholders for their continued support extended to
your Company's activities during the year under review.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(KAVEEN GUPTA) (VIPUL GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi {DIN-00204605) (DIN-00204638)
Date-30/07/2025 Director Director



SUN AERO LIMITED

CIN : UT4899D1.1993PL.CO55759
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PHONE # (91 11) 41515250  e-malil: sunairhotels@gmail.com

ANNEXURE-A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING

AND QUTGO for the vear ended on 31st March, 2025,

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

{A) Conservation of Energy:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy. : Not Applicable
(i} The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy. : Not Applicable
(i) The capital investment on energy conservation eguipments. ¢ Not Applicable

(B) Technology Absorption:

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption. 1 Not Applicable

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product : Not Applicable
development or import substitution.

(i) i case of imported technology {imported during the last three years : Not Applicable
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year).
fa) the details of technology imported

{b) the year of import;

{c) whether the technotogy been fully absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,

and the reasons thereof.

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. : Not Applicable

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and OQutgo:

Particulars
Earnings
Quigo / Expenses

Place: New Delhi
Dated : 30/07/2025

Year Ended Year Ended
31%'March 2025  31*'March 2024
NIL NIL
NIL NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

=H1e o)
(KAVEEN GUPTA) (VIPUL GUPTA)
(DIN-00204605) (DIN-00204838)

Director Director
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SUN AERO LIMITED

CIN : U74899DL1993P1.CO55759
Regd. Off: A-7, FIRST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110 017

PHONE # (21 11} 41515250 _e-mail: sunairhoteis@amail.com

ANNEXURE-B
FORM NO. AOC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014} for the year ended 31/03/2025.

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED
INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH
TRANSACTION UNDER THIRD PROVISO THERETO

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at Arm’s Lenath basis:

Sl No, Particulars Details
{a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship : N.A
(b}  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction : N.A
{c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : N.A
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction - N.A

including the value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or N.A
transaction
(i Date of approval by the Board : N.A
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any : N.A
(h)y Date on which the special resolution was passed in General N.A

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction at Arm’s Length basis:

S1. No. Particulars Betails
{a) Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship . N.A
(b}  Nature of coniracts / arrangements / fransaction _ N.A
{c}  Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : N.A
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transac‘aon ' NA
including the value, if any : '
(&) Date of approval by the Board : N.A
()  Amount paid as advances, if any : N.A
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ad)- S | -
(KAVEEN GUPTA) (VIPUL GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi {DIN-00204805) (DIN-00204838)
Dated : 30/07/2025 Director Director
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ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES N 5-316, GROUND FLOOR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS GREATER KAILASH PART-I

{ NEW DELHI -110 048

Ph.:011-42548288

email: ca.asood@gmail.com

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Membhers of Sun Aero Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sun Aero Limited {"the Company"),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (herein referred as "the Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the (Accounting Standards) Rules
2021 {"AS")and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics {CoE)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl} together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of
the Act and Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report
{(hereinafter called as "Board Report") which comprises various information’s required under
section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 but does not include the Financial Statements and our
auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statement does not cover the Board Report and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

fn connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Board
Report and in doing so, consider whether the Board Report is materially inconsistent with the
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

i, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this Board Report, we are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Y
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to tiquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve coltusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the operative effectiveness of Company's internal control systems,

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,
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d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
te draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
{ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Thisreportincludes a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Companies
{Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government in terms of sub-section {11}
of section 143 of the Act, since in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the said Order is applicable to the Company and has been annexed
as Annexure - A,

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2021.

6
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e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March

g)

2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 mMarch 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure — B”, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements-Refer Note No. 24 to the financial statements,

(if) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
inctuding derivative contracts.

{ili) There have been no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company te or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatscever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity {Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c} Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e), as provided
under (a) and (b), contain any material misstatement,

(v} (a) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year,

{b) The Company have not proposed any dividend for the year.
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{vi}Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial vear
ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

for Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 004985N

5-316, Ground Floor, e C} -

Greater Kailash Part-{ {Anil Scod)
Place: New Dethi : Partner

Date: 30/07/2025 Membership No. 83939
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5-316, GROUND FLOOR
GREATER KAILASH PART-I
NEW DELHI - 110 048
Ph.:011-42548288

email: ca.asood@gmail.com

ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Sun Aero Limited of even date)

(i} Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:
{a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. The company has no
intangible asset,

{(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and
equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, property, plant
and equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

{c) According to the information and expianations given to us, the records examined by us, we
report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of
Use assets) during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025, for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {as amended
in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii} {a) The inventory includes Shares, Mutual Funds and other securities were physically verified
by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. No discrepancy was noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records in the books of account.

(b) The Company has not availed /been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from Banks on the basis of security of current assets, therefore no
requirement to file quarterly returns/statements by the Company with such banks. Hence, this
clause is not applicable.

(iii) During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee(s} or
security{ies) or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans Secured or Unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any parties hence clause 3(iii}(a) to 3{iii) (f)
is not applicable to the company.

{iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted,
investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.
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{v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted

any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to

report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of
cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section {1) of section

148 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

{a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate

authorities except few instances of delay in deposits.

According to the information and explanations given, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of above statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2025, for a period of

more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) There are dues in respect of goods and service tax, value added tax, income tax and excise
duty which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2025, on account of dispute are given

below:
Period to which Forum where
Name of the Nature of | Amount {in the amount dispute is pending
statute dues Rs Crore} * relates
income-tax Act, | Income-tax High Court, New
1961 14.67 AY 1995-2000 Delhi

* Amounts are net of payments made and without considering interest for the overdue

period, if any, as may be levied if demand as raised is upheld.

{viii) ~ According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded in the hooks of account, in
the tax assessments under Income Tax Act as income during the year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not taken any term loans from banks/others during the year. Hence clause ix {a) to {c}is

not applicable.

(d) On an overali examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by

the Company.

{e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, the company does

not have Subsidiary/Associate/Joint venture.

{f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,

we report that the Company does not have subsidiaries.
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{x) {a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)
(a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of fully or
partially or convertible debentures during the yvear under audit.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under section 143(12)
of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors} Rules, 2014, with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xil)The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clauses 3(xii) (a), (b) and (c} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xifi)  According to the information and expianations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not require
to have internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 13 of the Companies {Accounts) Rutes, 2014.

{(xv}In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with its directors and hence, requirement to report on clause 3(xv} of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  (a) No such orders have been passed by any authority. Further the Company had made an
application to Reserve Bank of India for voluntary surrender of NBFC Certificate No. N-14-
03086 dated 16/12/2005 issued by Reserve bank of India, Delhi, the application is under still
under process and till date no Material order has received in this regard, Hence, reporting
under clause 3{xvi) {a), (b} and {¢} of the Order is not applicable.

{b} In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group {as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3{xvi} (d) of the Order is not applicable,

{(xvii} The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 42,48,809/- during the financial year under our
audit and no cash loss has been incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xvii} There has been no resignation by the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.
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(xix) ~ On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financia!
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

(xx}{a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) or other than
ongeoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3({xx} {a} is not applicable for the year.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of Section 135(6) of the Act.

for Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

TR
5-316, Ground Floor,
Greater Kailash Part-l (Anil Sood)
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 30/07/2025 Membership No, 83939



ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

$-316, GROUND FLOOR
GREATER KAILASH PART-I
NEW DELHI - 110 048
Ph.:011-42548288

email: ca.ascod@gmail.com

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph {f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Sun Aero Limited of even date)

Reporton the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause {i} of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial cantrols over financial reporting of Sun Aero Limited {“the
Company”} as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAl and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internat financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control hased
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the

Company. 22
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financiaf controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI

for Anil Sood & Assaciates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

5-316, Ground Floor, Sl |-
Greater Kailash Part- {Anii Sood)
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 30/07/2025 Membership No. 83939



SUN AERO LIMITED

CiN : U74899DL1893PLCOS5759
Regd. Office Address ; A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE. NEW DELH! - 110 017

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025

(All amounts in thousand of T, unless otherwise stated)

8l Note 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
No. Particulars No. Amount Amount
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Shareholders' Funds
{a) Share capital 3 700.00 700.00
{b) Reserves and surplus 4 273,797.88 274,497.88 277,741.05 278,441.05
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Other current liabilities 5 188.00 121.00
TOTAL. 274,665.88 278,562.05
iI. ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets
{a} Property, Pfant and Eduipment
Tangible assets, not under lease B 151,530.00 155,516.90
(b) Long-term loans and advances 7 92,680.76 §2,530.76
{c) Deferred tax assets 8 700.84 377.48
(d) Other non-current assets 9 - 244 .911.60 160.00 248,585.14
(2) Current Assets
(a) [nventories 10 28,309.97 8,660.98
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 11 444.32 20,754.28 21,3156.93 29,976.91
TOTAL 274,665.88 278,562.05
Significant Accounting Policies 2 - -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
AUDITORS' REPORT <, of / -
As per our separate report of even date attached
For ANIL SOOD & ASSQCIATES {KAVEEN GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Director

Place: New Dethi
Dated : 30/07/2025

Firm Regn. No.004985N

ol )=

{ANIL. SO0D)

Partner

Membership No. 83939

(DIN-Q02046085)

-
(VIPUL. GUPTA)

Director
(DIN-00204638)



SUN AERO LIMITED
CIN : U74899DL1993PLCO55758
Regd. Office Address : A-7, st FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELH! - 110 017

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025
(Alf amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

Sl Note 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
No, Particuiars No. Amount Amount
. Revenue
{a) Income from operations 12 17,864.47 12,893.77
(b} Other Income 13 - 1,14G.23
fi. Total Revenue 17,864 .47 ) 14,043.00
lil. Expenses
{b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 14 38,360.69 698.69
(¢} Changes in inventories of Stock-in-trade 18 -20,648.99 11,500.92
{d) Employee benefit expenses 16 254.63 199.80
{e) Other expenses 17 4,146.95 861.00
{f Finance costs 18 - 1.10
{g) Depreciation 19 - 679.16
IV. Total Expenses 2211328 13,940.66
V. Profit / (loss} before tax (If - V) -4,248 81 102.33

V1. Tax expense
(a) Current tax -

(b) Earlier years' tax 17.72 -86.63

{c) Deferred Tax -323.36 -305.64 68.97 -27.66
ViL Profit / (loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (V - Vi) -3,843.17 130.00
Vill Earnings per equity share (EPS) 20 {In Rs.) {In Rs.}

(a) Basic (56.33) 1.86

(b) Diluted (56.33) 1.86
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

AUDITORS' REPORT

As per our separate report of even date attached gc} ) o
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Director
Firm Regn. No.0D4985N (DIN-00204805)
ad)- oo~
{ANIL SO0D) {VIPUL GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi Partner Director
Dated : 30/07/2025 Membership No. 83939 (DIN-00204638)

BL



SUN AERO LIMITED

Regd. Office Address : A-7, I1st FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025
(Alf amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

SI. 31/03/12025 31/03/2024
No. Particulars Amount Amount
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit /(loss) hefore {ax and after prior period expenses -4.248.81 102.33
Operating (loss) before working capital changes -4.248.81 102.33
- Depreciation - 879.16
- Interest aid - 1.10
Movement in working capital:
- (Increase} / decrease in inventories -20.648.99 11,500.82
- (Increase) / decrease in loans and advances -150.00 55672.53
- (Increase) / decrease in other Non Current Assets 160.00 15.00
- Increase / {decrease) in other Other Current Liabilities 47.00 -
Cash {used in) operations -24,840.80 17,871.04
Direct taxes (paid) -17.72 96.63
Net cash {used in) operating activities (A) -24,858.52 17,867.68
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
- Sale of Fixed Assets 3,886.90
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) 3,886.90 -
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Interest paid - -1.10
Net cash from financing activities (C) - -1.10
Net increase / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) -20,871.62 17,966.58
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (D) 21,315.93 3,349.36
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (E} 444 32 21,315,93
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E-D) -20,871.62 17,966.58
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Cash in hand 339.41 658.25
With Banks - On current accounts 104 .90 20,657.68
444.32 21,315.93
Significant Accounting Policies: Note No. 2
AUDITORS' REPCRT A

As per our separate report of even date attached
For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Regn, No.004985N

ed |-

{ANiL SO0D)
Partner
Membership No. 83938

N

Place: New Delhi
Dated : 30/07/2025

{(KAVEEN GUPTA)
Director
(DIN-G0204605)

el

(VIPUL GUPTA)
Director
(DIN-00204638)



SUN AERO LIMITED
Regd. Office Address : A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL! ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCQUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS

a)

The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and
the refevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") as appiicable.

The financial statements have ben prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention basis. The
accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statemenis are consistent with those folfowed in
the previous year,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

C.

Use of Estimates ;

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reporied amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporiing period. Difference between the actual results and sstimates are
recognised in the period in which the results are known / materiafised.

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment:
ay Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

{i)y Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for the
intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange
rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised.

(i) Land is stated at original cost of acguisition.

(i) Capital work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Sheet,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Eguipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are recognized
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecegnized.

b) Leased Assets:

{i} Operating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other considerations.

(i) Finance Leases: The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum iease
rentais is capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount shown as lease
liability. The principal component in the lease rental is adjusted against the lease liability and the
interest component is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(i) However, rentals referred to in (i) or (ii) above and the interest component referred to in (i) above
pertaining o the period upto the date of commissioning of the assets are capitalized.

(iv) All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net investment in
the lease. Initial direct costs in respect of lease are expensed in the year in which such costs are
incurred. Income from lease assets is accounted by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease to
the net investment.

Intangible Assets & Amortisation:

Intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-26) on “Infangible
Assets" and are amortised over the useful fife of the underlying assets as follows:

a) Leasehold land: over the period of jease.

b) Lump sum fees for fechnicai know-how: over a period of six years in case of foreign technology and three
years in case of indigenous technology. %(8\




20
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are racagnized in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

. Depreciation and amortization:

a) Depreciation on tangible Property, Plant and Equipments is calculated on Straight Line Method pursuant
to the requirements of Schedule-Il of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01, 2014, by using
the rates prescribed therein over the estimated useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipmenis as
specified in Part 'C', while fixing the residual values of the Property, Plant and Equipments at 5% of their
original cost, in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year and on prorata basis for assets
acquired & put to use during the year.

b) Intangible Property, Plant and Equipments are amortized on a straighf-line basis over the estimated
useful economic life in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis
for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year. If there is a significant change from
previous estimates in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization period
and method are changed accordingly to reflect the changed pattern. However, no amortization expense
is provided on intangible assets derecognized during the year.

. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimate of recoverabie amount.

. Borrowing Costs :
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as

part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue in the period in which they
are incurred.

. Valuation of Investment:

ay Trade investments are the investments made fo enhance the Company's business interests.
Investments are either classified as current or long-term based on Management's intention at the time of
purchase,

b) Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair market vatue of each investment individually.

¢} Long term investments are acrried at cost iess provisions recorded to recognize any diminution, other
than temporary, in the carrying value of each investment.

d) Cost for overseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the
investment translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of investment,

. Investment Property:

An investment in land or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantiafly for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment property. Investment properties are stated at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a Straight Line Method basis
using the rates and useful lives prescribed in Schedule i to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of such
investment properties which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis for assets acquired and
put to use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the investment properties sold during the
year, but on disposal, the difference between its carrying amount and the net disposal proceeds is charged or
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Valuation of inventory:
nventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value wherever applicable. Cost is determined on
FIFO basis. (C) o.\
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J. Revenue Recognition:
All incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis. Revenue in respect of insurance
{ other claims, interest, commission, etc. is recognised only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate
collection will be made. Expenses incurred for which benefit will accrue in the subsequent years are declared
in the balance sheet as deferred revenue expenses and amortised over the period in which the benefit is
expected to accrue.

K. Foreign Currency Transactions:
a) In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate” as

prescribed by the ICAl, year-end balance of foreign currency transactions is translated at the year-end
rates and the corresponding effect is given in the respective accounts. Transactions denominated in
foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction. However,
transactions completed during the year are adjusted on actual basis.

b) In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end
rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium paid on
forward contracts is recognized over the fife of the contract.

c) Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d} Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate to acquisition of Property,
Plant and Equipments, in which case they are adjusied to the carrying cost of such assets.

e) Difference in outstanding value of term loan in foreign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the date of
obtaining loan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account called ‘Exchange Difference (FC
Laon)' Account to be approprited at the conclusion of the said term loan.

f) Difference in foreign exchange forward contracts is recognised as income / loss in the books of account
by spreading the same proportionately over the effective life of the contract.

L. Employee Benefits ;

a) Al short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounted armount, as liability (accrued expense),
after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset (prepaid expense).

b) Company's contribution to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan, is charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

c) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit rmethod made at the end of each financial year.

d} Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation
is done as per projected unit method,

e) Actuariat gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

fy  Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incutrence of any such obligation.

M. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax :
Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from 'timing differences' between taxable and accounting
income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the
balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward oniy to the extent that there is
a virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future,

N. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

a) Provisions are recognised for liabilities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if;
{iy the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
{i) a probable cutflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, and
{ii) the amount of obligation can reliably be estimated.
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only when
itis virtually certain that the reimbursement will ultimately be received.

q{}
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b} Contingent Liabiiity is disclosed in case of;
iy = present obligation arising on past events, when # is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation,
(i} a present obligation, when no reliable estimate is possible, and
{iii) a possible obliation arising from past events, where the probability of ouiflow of resources is not
remote.
¢) Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
d) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Prior Period ltems :
Prior Period items are disclosed separately in the statement of profit and loss for the year, keeping in view
their materiality and the past method of accounting.

. Exceptional and Extra-ordinary ltems:
Exceptional and extra-ordinary items of the Company during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.




SUN AERO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2025 31/03/12024
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (PY Rs. 10/-} each 1,000,000 10,000.00 1,000,000 10,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 70,000 700.00 70,000 700.00
Total 70,000 700.C0 70,000 700.00
Reconciliation of the eguity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
31/03/2025 31403/2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 70,000 700.00 70,000 700.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 70,000 700.0C 70,000 700.00

Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/ per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitied to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

During the year ended 31* March, 2025 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distribution to equity
shareholders was Rs. Nil {PY Rs, Nil),

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company, after distribution of alt preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

Equity Shares held by holding company, ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries / associates:

3170312025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
M/s Sunair Hotels Limited, the holding company
70,000 (PY 70,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 700.00 700.00

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
No. of No. of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Helding

Equity shares of Rs. 10/ each fuily paid-up
M/s Sunair Hotels Limited, holding company 70,000 100 70,000 100
(3500 shares are being held in the names of Six nomineas
of Sunair Holels Limited and the balance shares are heid
in the name of Sunair Hotels Limited)

Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

31/03/2025 3170372024
No. of No. of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Holding

Name of the sharehoider
Sunair Hotels Limited 70,000 100% 70,000 100%
(3500 shares are being held in the names of Six nominees :
of Sunair Hotels Limited and the balance shares are held
in the name of Sunair Hotels Limited)

Tofal 70,60C 100% 70,000 100%

4



4, RESERVES & SURPLUS

Surplus ! {deficit} in the statement of profit and loss
Opening Balance

Add:  Net Profit / (Net Loss) for the current year
Closing Balance

Total
5. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
a.  Audit fee payable
b, TDS Payable

43

31/03/2025
Amount

277,741.05
-3,943.17

~ 27379788

273,797.88

121,650
48.5C

Total 168.00

31/03/2024
Amount

277,611.06
130.00

277,741.05

277,741.05

108.90
12.10
121.00
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SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise staled)

8.

10.

11.

12.

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

31/03/2025
Amount
A. Capital Advances
a. Unsecured, considered good 84,373.16
B. Others
a. Unsecured, considered good
-income Tax Refundable 1,107.60
-GST Input Available 7.,200.00
Total 92.8680.76
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

3110312024
Amount

84,223.16

1,107.60
7,200.00

__62530.76

tn line with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxes on income”
there were no deferred tax as on as on 1st April, 2024 and 31st March, 2025, However components of

deferred tax liabilities as on those dates are given as under:

01/04/2024 Forthe Year Reversing 31/03/2025
A. Deferred Tax Assets
Depreciation 51.43 - 49.33 2.10
Unabsorbed Depreciation cff 50.26 0.50 - 50.76
Unabsorbed Business Losses cff 275,78 372.20 - 847.98
Total 377.48 37270 49.33 700.84
Net Deferred Tax Assets 377.48 37270 -49.33 700.84
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSFTS
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
A, Staff Advance - 160.00
Total - 160.00
INVENTORIES
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
A. Stock-intrade (Valued at Cost or NRV whichever is Less)
- Mutual Fund Units 29,300.97 8.660.68
Total {A) 29,309.97 8,660.98
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
3170312025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
a. Balances with banks
In current accounts with Scheduled Banks 104.91 20,657.68
{There are nc earmarked halances,
margin  money,  security  against
borrowings, guarantees and other
b. Cash on hand 339.41 658.25
444.32 21,315.93



SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 {Conid...)
{All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

13,

14.

15.

16.

17.

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

A. Sale of Products

Traded Goods
income from Operations (Gross)
Less: Excise Duty
Income from Operations (Net} Total
Details of Goods Sold
a. Shares & Mutual Funds

OTHER INCOME

A, Interest Income
- interest Income
- interest on T Refund
B. Profit on Sale of PMS
C. Dividend From Mutual Fund

Total

PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

-Mutual Funds

Total

{INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF TRADED GOODS

inventories at the end of the vear
a. Mutuai Funds

Inventories at the beginning of the vear
a. Mutual Funds

{Increase} / Decrease in inventories

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

A. Salaries, wages and bonus
B. Siaff Welfare Expenses

Y

3110372025 3110312024
Amount Amount
17.864.47 12,893.77
17,864 .47 12,833.77
17.864.47 12,883.77
17,864 .47 12,803.77
17,864 .47 12,883.77
17.864.47 12,883.77
3110312025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
- 38.11
- 26.77
- 1,082.02
- 2.34
- T 114923
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
38,360.68 698.69
38,360.69 6598.69
31/03/2025 31/03/2024 (Increase) /
Amount Amount Decrease
31/03/2025
29,308.97 8,660.88 -20,648.39
29,308.87 §,660.98 -20,648 .99
31/03/2024
§,660.68 20,161.80 11,500.92
8,660,98 20,161.90 11,500,92
20,648.99 -11,500.92
31/03/2025 3110312024
Amount Amount
238,60 183.60
16.03 16.20
Total 254.63 18G.80




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of € unless otherwise stated)

18.

19,

20,

21

OTHER EXPENSES

Traveliing & Conveyance
Communication Cost
Printing & Stationery
Payment to Auditors
ROC Filing Fees
Legal & Professionat
. Venhicle Running & Maintenance Charges
. Management Fees
Misc, Expenses
Advertisment Expense
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

ACTIOTMMOO®WR

Total

Details of Payment to Auditors
As Auditor:

Statutory Audit Fee
Tax Audit Fee
Total

FINANCE COST

a. interest Paid on TDS
Total

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Assets
Total

EARNING PER SHARE {EPS)

Total operations for the year

Profit / (loss) after tax

l.ess: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares
Net profit / (loss) for calculation of Basic EPS

Net profit as above

Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares

Add : Adiustments for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares
Net profit / (loss) for calculation of Diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares in calcuiating Basic EPS
Effect of dilution:

Convertible preference shares (numbers)

Convertible bonds (numbers)

Stock option granted under ESOP

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS

(a) Basic
(b) Diluted (?\’A,.

31/03/2025 31/03/12024
Amount Amount
15.29 14.13
16.01 16.24
15.41 15.52
135.00 121.00
14.26 32,37
660.00 460.00
127.02 88.00
- 110.69
26.46 23.05
12.60 -
3,124.90 -
4,146.95 861.00
75.00 60C.50
60.00 60.50
135.00 121.00
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
- 679.16
- 679.16
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
-3,943.17 130.00
-3,843.17 130.00
-3,843.17 130.00
-3,843.17 130.06
70,000 70,000
70,000 70,000
(56.33) 1.86
{58.33) 1.86



SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
(Al amounts in thousand of ¥, uniess otherwise stated}

22. Related Party Disclosure

In accordance with AS-18 "Related Party Disclosures” the names of related parties along with aggregate amount
of transactions and year end balances with them are given as follows:

3) Related parties and their relationshp

Y

Controlling shareholders
The Company is controfled by M/s Sunair Hotfels Limited through its shareholding by owning 100% of
equity share capital as on 31 March 2025.

Key management personnel and their relatives

'A number of key management personnel, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that
result in them having conirel or significant influence over those entities. A number of these personne!
transacted with the Company during the reporting peried. The terms and conditions of the transactions
with key management personne! and their related parties were no more favourable than those available,
or those which might reasonably be expected to he available, in respect of similar {ransactions with non-
key management personnel related entities on an arm's length basis.

Name of key management personnel, their relatives and entities over which they have control or
significant influence with whom fransaction were entered during the year or balance was outstanding at
the balance sheet date are as follows:

Helding Company ; Sunair Hotels Limited
Key management personnel

- Mr. Kaveen Gupta . Director
= Mr. Vipul Gupta ;. Director

Enterprises where Key Managerial Personnel along with their relatives exercise significant influence;

1.

Pushpanjali Trexim (P) Lid. : MrKaveen Gupta and Mr Vipul Gupta Directors
& Shareholders .

Balances with related parties
Alf outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash. The aggregate vaiue of the Company's
ouistanding balances relafing to reiated parties are as follows:

Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
Advances Given 21,538.16 21,838.16

9%



SUN AERO LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year endad March 34, 2025
(Alf amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

22.1. Baiance outstanding at the year end:

Enterprises under the control of
key management personnal

Particulars Koy Management Parsonnel (KMP} of entlty having joint Total
control over the Hoiding
Company and thelir relatives
31/03/2025 3110312024 31703/2025 31/03/2024 31/03/2028 31/03/2024
Advances Given
Pushpanjali Trexim Limited - - 21,538.16 21,638.16 21,538,186 21,538.16
- - 21,638.16 21,538.16 21,538.16 21,638,168

22,2, All teans, guarantees and securities as disclosed In respeclive notes are given for business purposes.

C\\ C.\




SUN AEROC LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 {Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

23.

24,

25.

Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

In terms of Schedule IIf of the Companies Act, 2013 and notification number GSR 718(e), the company had
requested its various suppliers, who may be registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enierprises
Development Act, 2006, to furnish the relevant registration certificate under that Act and cenfirmation
regards them being under the said category. From the date of receipt of confirmed details and information
from the said parties the cutstanding on account purchase made/services obtained from such suppliers
including the disputed amounts due fo them, were ascertained and reflected in the financials as due to Micro
& Small Enterprises. The details in respect of the parties that couid be identified as Micro and Small
enterprises as per the MSMED Act on the basis of the information available with the management are given
betow:

31/03/2025 31/03/2624
Amount Amount
(iy The principal amount and the interest due thereon (o be shown
separately) remaining unpaid {¢ any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year.
-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - -
-Interest due on above - -

{ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting vear.

(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but withouf adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act 2006, - .

(iv) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006. - -

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS ({to the extent not provided for)

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
() Contingent Liabilities
A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Nil ‘ Nif
B. Guarantees Nil Nit
C. Bills of exchange discounted with banks Nil Nit
D. Tax demand disputed in appeals 146,651.40 148,651.40
* Accrued interest, if any
(iiy Commitments
A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining
to be executed on capital accounts and Nil Nil
B. Uncalied liability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil Nil
C. Other commitments Nil Nil

Gratuity & Other Post-empioyment Beneflts

No provision has been made in the accounts in respect of future payments of gratuity as per the payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. VGO




SUN AERQ LINITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of €, unless otherwise stated)

26. Seagment Reporting

The business segments of the Company have been identified in terms of the Accounting Standard AS-17
on “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, taking into account the
organisational structure and different risk and return involved in those segments. Accordingly, the
reportable business segments of the company are as under:

a)
b)

Investment Business
Real Estate

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the following additional policies of
the Company, However, the foliowing additional policies have been adopted for Segment Reporting:

a)

Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating
business activities of the segment. However, revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as
a whole and cannot be allocated to a particlar segment on reasonable basis are disclosed separately
as "unallocable”.
Segment assets and fabilities resulting from the operating activities of a segment or directly
attributable / allocabie to the segment on a reasonable basis are so allocated.
Portfolio Unallocable
Manageme  Real Estate {Amount} Total Amount

Particulars
Segment Revenue
- Revenue 17,864 .47 - - 17.864.47

Net Sales / Income from Operations (A) 17,864.47 - - 17,864.47

Segment Expenses
Allocable Expenses

~Operating / Administraticn Expenses 17,711.70 - 4.401.58 22,113.28
By 17,711.70 - 4,401.58 22,113.28
Segment Result A-B 152,77 - -4,401.58 -4,248.81
Less : Depreciation -
Profit before Taxation -4.248.81
Less: Tax Expense for the year -305,64
Profit after Taxation -3,943.17

Segment Assets (including Misc.

expenditure and debit balance of Profit
& Loss Alc) 29,309.97 - 245,355.92 274,665.88

Segment Liabilities (including long
term liabilities) - - - -

Total Carrying Amount of fixed assets - 110,111.50 41,418.50 151,530.G00
Total Depreciation on fixed assets - - - -

The business segments of the Company, viz., Investment and Real Estate are located at one
geographical place only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicable to the Company.

Lol



SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of 2, unless otherwise stated)

27. Ratio
S. NoJ Particulars Measures | 31/03/2025 | 31/03/2024 | % Variance Reason for variance

1 [Current Ratio Times 177,11 247.74 -29%|The ratic has decreased due fo a drop in
current assets or an increase in current
Hiabilities.

2 |Debt-Eguity Ratic Times N.A. N.A. - N.A.

3 |Debt service coveragejTimes N.A. N.A, - N.A.

ratio

4 |Relurn on eguity ratio Percentage -0.01 0.00 -3177%|{The shift from a small positive to a negative
ROE signais that the company has moved from
generating profit to incurring losses. This is likely
due fo increased net losses and negative
profitability in 2025,

5 linveniory lurnover ratic  |Times 0.93 0.85 10%|A slight increase in ratio indicates better
inventory management. This could result from
higher cost of goods sold (COGS) , possibly due
o improved sales.

6 {Trade receivables| Times NLA N.A - N.A,

turnover ratio

7 |Trade payables turnover|Times N.A N.A - N.A,

ratio

§ |Net capital turnover ratio | Times 0.60 0.43 40% | A notable improvement driven by an increase in
net sales or a reduction in working capital. This
suggests better efficiency in utilizing capital for
generating revenue.

9  |Net profit ratio Percentage -0.22 0.01 ~2289%|A sharp decline in ralio, moving into deep
negative ferritory refiects significant losses in
2025 due to increased expenses and decline in
revenuye.

10 |Return on capitaljPercentage -0.02 0.00 -4267%|The Retwrn On Capital Employed turning

employed negative shows the company failed to generate
refurns on its capital, ilkely due to operating
osses.

11 |Return oninvesiment Percentage! N.A N.A - N.A.

S. No Ratlos Numerator Denominator

1 |Current ratio Current asseils Current liabilities

2  |Debt-equity ratio Total debt = long term borrowings +  {Shareholder's equity

3 Debt service coverage|Earning for debt service = Net profitjDebt service = Interest payments + principal repayments

ratio before taxes + non-cash operating

4 |Return on equity ratio Net profits after taxes - preference Average shareholder's equity

5 [lnventory turnover ratio  |Cost of gocds sold Average inventory = {Opening + ¢losing balance / 2)

8 Trade receivables|Net credit sales Average accounts receivables

turnover ratic
7 Trade payables turnover|Net ¢redit purchases Average trade payables
ratio
Net capital turnover ratio |Net sales Average working capitat (i.e. total current assets less total
current liabilities)

9 |Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales

10 Return en capitai|Earning before interest and taxes{Capital employed = Tangible nef worth + {otal debt + deferred

employed (EBIT) tax liability

11 |Return on investment Income generated from investments  [Time weighted average investments

lo




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 {Contd...}

(All amounts in thousand of €, unless otherwise stated)

28. MCA notification dated 24th March 2021 for amendments to Schedule iii disclosures which are not
applicable:

(i) Title deed of immovable property not held in the name of compnay - No propertiy are held by the
company.

(i) Details of Benami Property and its proceedings- Not applicable as there are no proceedings which have
been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(iiy Witifull defaulter - 'The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institutions.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies - 'The Company has not entered into any iransactions with the
companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
and do not have any outstanding balance as at the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies - "The Company has complied with the number of layers
prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017,

{vi) Compliance with approved scheme of arrangement - 'The Company has not been approved any Scheme
of Arrangements by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) Details of crypto currency or Virtual currency - 'The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto
currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

29. Debts due by firms or companies in which directors are interested - Rs. NIL (PY Rs. NiL). Maximum
amount outstanding at any time during the year Rs. NIL (PY Rs. NIL).

30. EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMS
No exceptional or extra-ordinary items of revenue nature occurred during the year (PY Nil). Hence no
disclosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

31. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Indian rupees.

32. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous year figures have been regrouped/recast wherever considered necessary.

d )
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Director
Firm Regn. No.004985N (DIN-00204605)
)~ cd).
(ANIL SOOD) (VIPUL GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi Partner Director
Dated ; 30/07/2025 Membership No. 83839 (DIN-00204638)
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ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES ( ~A ) 5316, GROUND FLOOR

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS A GREATER KAILASH PART-|
WAL J NEW DELHI - 110 048

Ph.:011-42548288
email: ca.asood@gmail.com

independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited
Report on the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s Sunair Hotels Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 ("AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of their consolidated statement of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, of their
consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group In accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the iCAlI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’'s Information, but does not include the consolidated Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to
continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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b) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary
companies which are companies incorporated in India has adequate internal financial controls
systems with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operative
effectiveness of such controls,

¢} Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disciosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial statements of such entities included in the financial consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaiuating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
henefits of such communication,
Loy
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1} With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies {Auditor’s
Report} Order, 2020 {the “Order”/ “CARQ") issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information
and explanations given to us, and based on the Auditor’s Reports on the financial statements of
Company and its subsidiaries as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025, included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group, we report in respect of those companies where
audits have been completed under section 143 of the Act, there has been no such qualifications
or adverse remarks by any auditor in their respective reports.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounting
Standards} Rules, 2021.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of the
directors of the said Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure-B which is based on the auditor’s reports of the Company and its subsidiary. Qur
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended:
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h)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in cur opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

{i} The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
Consolidated financial position of Group in respect of claims and demands which are
being contested as mentioned in Refer Note 41.

(i) the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iif) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in india
during the year ended 31%, March, 2025.

{iv} (a) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
which are incorporated in India, whose financial statements have heen audited under
the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively
that, to the best of their knowledge and bellef, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or in kind of funds) by the
Company or any of such subsidiaries to or In any other person or entity, including foreign
entity {Intermediaries), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
or any of such subsidiary {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on hehailf of the Ultimate Beneficiarles.

{b) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
which are incorporated in India, whose financial statements have heen audited under
the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively,
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds {which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries from any other person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding
Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company or any of such subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause {i} and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
{b}, contain any material misstatement.
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(v} {a) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
{b) The Company have not proposed any dividend for the vear,

{vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the holding Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in India have used accounting software systems for
maintaining their respective books of account for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for ail relevant transactions recorded in the software
systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

for Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

5-316, Ground Floor, sl
Greater Kailash Part-i {Anil Sood)
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939
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NEW DELH! - 110 048
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email: ca.ascod@gmail.com

ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITQR’S REPORT

Report on the internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause {i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”}

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consclidated financial statements of M/s Sunair Hotels Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we
have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of
the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013
which is its subsidiary company, as of that date. In our opinion, the Holding Company and such
companies incorporated in India which is its subsidiary company have, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such
internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by such
companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
based on criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, inciuding
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the relevant subsidiary company in terms of their report is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

for Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

$-316, Ground Floor, gff)/,

Greater Kailash Part-| {Anil Sood)
Ptace: New Delhi Partner

Date: 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: UT4899DL1977PLCO0B495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

51, Particulars Notes AS AT AS AT
No. 31/03/2025 31/03/2024

. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

{1) Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share capital 3 397,500.00 387,500.00
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 1,672,605.82 2,068,505.82  1,616,744.55 2,014,244 55
(2} Non-current Liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5 162,878.58 157,854,658
(h}y Other fong-term liabilifies 3] 88,405.00 89.420.00
{c) Long-term provisions 7 28,518.54 281,902.11 26,591.86 273,866.52
(3) Current Liabilities
{a} Trade payables 8
- Total Outstanding dues of Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises; 0.00 3,620.22
' - Total Outstanding dues of Creditors
other than Micro Enterprises and
Smali Enterprises 23,960.78 22,509.08
{p) Other Current Liabili{ies 9 121,114.24 104,186.57
{c) Short-term provisions 106 11,747 .60 166,822.62 10,660.90 140,876.78
TOTAL 2,508,230.565 2,428 087 85
. ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(i} Tangible assets 11 1,328,042.28 1,365,186.27
{b) Non-current investmenis 12 722,445 .50 692,010.30
Deferred Tax Asset (net) " 13 700.84 377.48
{c) Long-term loans and advances 14 188,725.03 139,661.78
{d) Other non-current assets 15 12,753.36 924,624.72 12,913.36 844,062.89
(2) Current Assets
{a) inventories 16 103,703.38 82,136.44
{b) Trade receivables 17 36,807.74 29,525.14
{c) Cash and bank halances 18 52,575.14 38,051.75
{d) Shori-term loans and advances 19 52,820.12 57,863.47
{e} Other current assets 20 $,657.18 255,563.57 11,258.89 218,838.68
TOTAL 2,508,230.55 2,428,087 85
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

aq) - Sef |-
As per our separate repori of even date attached
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES. (KAVEEN GUPTA} (VIPUL GUPTA)
Firm Regn No. 004985N Executive Director Executive Director
Chartered Accountants (DIN-00204805) (DIN-00204638)
o) cal -
(AN SO0D) {VIPIN JAIN) {(NEHA RAJPUT)
Piace ; New Dethi Partner Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary

Dated : 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83938 119 M.No.-FCS 8984 {M No. A-26116)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PLC00B495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELH! - 110 017

e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Website- www . hotelmetdeihi.com

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

(Al amounts in thousand of ¥, uniess otherwise stafed)

Sl. Particulars Notes 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
No.
i, Revenue
{2) Income from operations 21 687,113.74 674,301.26
{b) Cther Income 22 34,456.51 25,802.20
il. Total Revenue 731,570.26 701,203.48
ill. Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 23 46,438.92 48.718.06
() Purchase of Stock 24 38,360.69 688.69
(c) Change in Inventory 25 -20),648.99 11,500.82
(d) Cost of utilities and hospitality services 26 979.95 1,098.15
(e} Employee benefit expenses 27 134,580.98 135,419.14
() Other expenses 28 416,999.22 391,756.24
(g) Finance costs 29 44 56 62.73
(h) Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 34,319.34 34,590.96
(i) Expenditure on CSR Activity 31 1,511.95 745.30
IV. Total Expenses 652,586.62 62459018
V. Profit/ (loss) before exceptional itemn and tax (Il - [V) 78,983.64 76,613.28
Less : Exceptional item - -
V1. Profit / (loss) before tax (IV - V) 78,583.64 76.613.28
V11, Tax expense/(saving)
{a) Current tax 14,500.00 8,387.78
(b} Deferred tax 4,800.56 -245.38
(c) Earlier Years Taxes 4,421.81 23,722.37 5708.79 13,851.18
Vil Profit / (loss) for the vear (V - V1) 55,261.27 £52,762.11
IX. Prior period adjustments - -
X. Profit/ (loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (VI - VIiI) b5,261.27 62,762 11
Xl. Earnings per equity share (EPS) 32
{(a) Basic 1.39 1.58
{b) Diluted 1.35 1.58
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our separate report of even date attached .
i~ <ol =

For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES.
Firm Regn No. 004985N

Chartered Accountants (DIN-00204605)

&d/= o)
(ANIL SO0D) {VIPIN JAIN)
Place : New Delhi Partner

Dated : 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939

i,

(KAVEEN GUPTA)
Executive Director

(VIPUL GUPTA)
Executive Director
{DIN-00204638)

c:_:,rJ /-

{NEHA RAJPUT)

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.No.-FCS 8984

(M No. A-26118}



e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U74899DL1977PLC008495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34st MARCH, 2025
(All amounts in thousand of . unless otherwise stated)

Si. Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/2024

No,

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit /(loss) before tax and after prior period expenses 74,561.83 70,904.48
Adjustments for;
- Interest Income -36.96 -86.24
- Dividend Received -3.20 -4.93
- Depreciation 34,319.34 34,580,886
- {(Profit) / Loss on sale of Assets 3,124.80 -1,193.15
Operating (loss) before working capital changes 111,965.91 104,211.13
Movement in working capital:
~(Increase) / Decrease in inventories -21,563.95 10,568.79
-(Increase) / Decrease in Debtors -7,382.681 2,263,585
-(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances 5,043.35 -4,296.82
-(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current assets 1,701.71 -473.98
-(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current assets 160.00 16.00
-(Increase) / Decrease in Long-term loans and advances -49,063.27 -18,229.48
-Increase / {(Decrease) in Trade payables -2,068.53 1,205.38
-Increase / (Decrease) in Other long-term liabilities -15.00 -895.00
-Increase / (Decrease) in Long-term provisions 2,926.68 10,039.76
-Increase / (Decrease) in Sundry Liabilities 16,927.65 7,075.94
-Increase / (Decrease) in Other Provisions 1,086.71 -2,757.51
Cash (used in) operations 58,718.66 108,627.76
Direct taxes (paid) 14,500.00 8,387.78
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A} 45,218.66 100,239,988

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investments -30,435.20 -81,744.11
Purchase of Fixed Assets -1,162.23 -26,238.0%
Sale of Assets 3,8986.90 1,432.02
Pividend received 3.20 493
Profit (Loss) on sale of Assets -3,124.90 -
Net cash {used in} investing activities (B8) -30,732.24 -106,545.25

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income 38.96 86.24
Net cash from financing activities {C}) 36.96 £86.24
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 14,523.38 -6,219.04
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year {D) 38,051.75 44,270.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (E) 52,5675.14 38,051.75
Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {E-D) 14,523,328 -6,219.04
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Cash in Hand 4,103.67 3,461.68
FDRs with Banks £58.32 521.37
Balances with Banks 47,813.15 34,068.71

52,575.14 38,051.75




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899D1_1977PLC0O0E495
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21st MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts in thousand of ¥ unless otherwise stated)
Note: The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under
the ‘Indirect Method® as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash

Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our separate report of even date attached

oo [ ot/ -
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES. (KAVEEN GUPTA)} (VIPUL GUPTA)
Firm Regn No. 004985N Executive Director Executive Director
Chartered Accountants {DIN-00204605) (DIN-00204638)
'("‘::’Cf/’ ,Sc:l‘}/-'" C:C\// -~
{ANIL SOO0D) (VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place : New Delhi Partner Chief Financial OfficeCompany Secretary
Dated : 01/08/2025 Membership No. 83939 M.No.-FCS 8984 (M No. A-26116)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS

Principles of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements relating fo Suanir Hotels Limited (the parent company) and Sun
Areo Limited (its wholly owned subsidiary in India) have been prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standard (AS) 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (I1CAl).

a) The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards} Rules, 2021,
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act"), as applicable.

b) The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the previous year.

¢) The financial statements of the wholly owned subsidiary in India have been consolidated in accordance
with AS-21 — "Consolidated Financial Statements”. In the consclidated financial statements, the assets,
liabiiities, income, and expenses of the subsidiary are combined on a line-by-line basis with those of the
parent company. All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Use of Estimates :
The preparation of Consolidated financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and
estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

B. Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment:
a) Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

() Tangible Property. Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for the
intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange
rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised.

(i) Land is stated at original cost of acquisition.

(#) Capitat work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Sheet.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

b) Leased Assets:
(i) Operating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other considerations.
(i) Einance Leases; The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease
rentals is capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount shown as
lease liability. The principal component in the lease rental is adjusted against the lease liability and
the interest component is charged to the statement of profit and loss.
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(iiiy However, rentals referred to in (i) or (ii) above and the interest component referred to in (if) above
pertaining to the period upto the date of commissioning of the assets are capitalized.

(iv) Ali assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equai to net investment in
the lease. Initial direct costs in respect of lease are expensed in the year in which such costs are
incurred. Income from lease assets is accounted by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease
to the net investment.

Intangible Assets & Amortisation:

Intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-28) on
“Intangible Assets” and are amortised over the useful life of the underlying assets as follows:

a) Leasehoid land: over the period of lease.

b) Lump sum fees for technical know-how: over a period of six years in case of foreign technology and
three years in case of indigenous technology.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are recognized
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and amortization:

a) Depreciation on tangible Property, Plant and Equipments is calculated on Straight Line Method
pursuant to the requirements of Schedule-l of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01,
2014, by using the rates prescribed therein over the estimated useful lives of the Property, Plant and
Equipments as specified in Part 'C', while fixing the residual values of the Property, Plant and
Equipments at 5% of their originai cost, in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year
and on prorata basis for assets acquired & put to use during the year.

b) Intangible Property, Plant ang Equipments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful economic life in respect of assets which are used for full pericd in the year, and on prorata basis
for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year. If there is a significant change from
previous estimates in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization period
and method are changed accordingly to reflect the changed pattern. However, no amortization
expense is provided on intangible assets derecognized during the year,

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributabie to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assels are capitalised
as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue in the period in
which they are incurred.

. Valuation of Investment;

a) Trade investments are the investments made to enhance the Company's business interests.
Investments are either classified as current or long-term based on Management's intention at the time
of purchase.,

b) Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair market value of each investment
individually.

¢} Long term investments are carried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any diminution, other
than temporary, in the carrying value of each investment.

d) Cost for overseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the
investment translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of investment.
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Investment Property:
An investment in land or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment property. Investment properties are siated at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any,

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calcuiated on a Straight Line Method basis
using the rates and useful lives prescribed in Schedule [l to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of such
investment properties which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis for assets acquired
and put to use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the investment properties sold
during the year, but on disposal, the difference between itg carrying amount and the net disposal proceeds
fs charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Vaiuation of Inventory:
fnventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value wherever applicable. Cost is determined on
weighted average basis.

Revenue Recognition:

All incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis. Revenue in respect of
insurance / other ctaims, interest, commission, etc. is recognised only when it is reascnably certain that the
ultimate collection wilt be made. Expenses incurred for which benefit will accrue in the subsequent years
are declared in the balance sheet as deferred revenue expenses and amortised over the period in which
the benefit is expected to acerue.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

a} In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate”
as prescribed by the ICAl, year-end balance of foreign currency transactions is translated at the year-
end rates and the corresponding effect is given in the respective accounts. Transactions denominated
in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction. However,
transactions completed during the year are adjusted on actual basis.

b) In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year
end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium
paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

¢) Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate to acquisition of
Property, Plant and Equipments, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

e) Difference in outstanding value of term loan in foreign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the date of
obtaining loan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account called ‘Exchange Difference
(FC Loan)' Account to be approprited at the conclusion of the said term loan.

f) Difference in foreign exchange forward contracts is recognised as income / loss in the books of
account by spreading the same proportichately over the effective life of the contract.

Employee Benefits :

a) All short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounted amount, as liability {accrued expense),
after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset (prepaid expense},

b} Company's contribution to Provident Fund, which is a defined coniribution plan, is charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

c) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation
on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

d) lLong term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
vaiuation is done as per projected unit method.

&) Actuarial gains/iosses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

f) Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incurrence of any such obligation.
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M. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax : z
Provisicn for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resuiting from ‘timing differences’ between taxable and accounting
income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the
balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there
is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

N. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ;
a) Provisions are recognised for liabilities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if;
(i) the Company has a present cbligation as a result of a past event,
(ii) a probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, and
(iif) the amount of obligation can reliably be estimated.

Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settie a provision is recognised only
when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will uitimately be received.

b} Contingent Liability is disciosed in case of:
(i} a present obligation arising on past events, when it is not probabie that an outflow of rescurces will
be required to settle the obligation,
(i) a present obligation, when no reliable estimate is possible, and
(i) a possible obliation arising from past events, where the probability of outflow of resources is not
remote. ’
¢} Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
d) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Q. Prior Period ltems :
Prior Pericd items are disclosed separately in the statement of profit and loss for the year, keeping in view
their materiality and the past method of accounting.

P. Exceptional and Extra-ordinary [tems:
Exceptional and exira-ordinary items of the Company during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.

2.0



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unfess otherwise stated)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised and jssued share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 40,000,000  400,000.00 40,000,000 400,000.00

Subscribed and paid-up share capital:

Equity shares of Rs, 10/- each fuily paid-up 39,750,000  397,500.00 39,750,000 397,500.00
Total 39,750,000 397,506.00 ~ 39,750,000 397,500.00

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beqginning and at the end of the reporting
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares ouistanding at the beginning of the year 39,750,000  397,560.00 39,750,000 397,500.00

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 39,750,000  397,800.00 38,750,000 387,500.00

Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/ per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to
equity shareholders was Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil),

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to

the number of equity shares held by the sharehoiders,

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

31/03/2025 31/03/2024

No. of No. of

Shares % of Shares % of

held Helding held Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up
A. Columbia Trading Co. Lid. 2,280,176 573% 2,280,176 5.73%
B. Kaveen Gupta 8,738,310 21.98% 3,291,000 8.28%
C. 5.P.Gupta - - 8,259,790 23.30%
D. Mrs. Sheel Gupta 2,280,750 561% 1,708,150 4.29%
E. Star Light Credit India Lid. 4,257,500 10.71% 4,257,500 10.71%
F. Vipul Gupta 8,437,080 21.22% 2,891,000 7.53%
G. VLS Finance Limited* 9,594,824 24.14% 9,584,824 24 14%

(* Under dispute)

1)



Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

31/03/2025 31/03/2024

No. of No. of

Shares %of Shares % of
Name of the_shareholder held Holding held Holding
A. Ananya Gupta & Kaveen Gupta 5,30,000 1.34% 5,30,600 1.34%
B. Mrs. Babita Gupta 17.80,000 4.48% 17,80,000 4.48%
. Mr. Kaveen Gupta 87,386,310 21.98% 32,891,000 8.28%
D. Kaveen Gupta (HUF) 4,65,000 1.17% 4,685,000 1.17%
E. Mrs. Monisha Gupta 14,15,000 3.56% 14,15,00C 3.56%
F. Mr. S.P. Gupta . - 92,59,780 23.30%
G. Mrs. Sheel Gupta 17,086,150 4.29% 17,086,150 4.29%
H. S.P. Gupta (HUF) - - 16,31,600 4.10%
i, Mrs. Sheel Gupta 5,22,600 1.32% 5,22,600 1.32%
4. Mr. Vipul Gupta 84,37,080 21.22% 25,91,00C 7.53%
K. Columbia Trading Co. Lid. 22,80,176 5.73% 22,80,178 5.73%



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)

(Al amounts in thousand of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

4. RESERVES & SURPLUS

A. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance
Closing Balance (A)

B. Other Reserves
General Reserve

Opening Balance
Closing Balance (B)

C. Surplus { {(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Cpening Balance

Add:  Net Profit / (Net Loss) for the current year
Amount available for Appropriations

Less: Appropriations

Closing Balance (C)

Total (A+B+C)

5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
80,000.00 80,000.00
80,000.00 80,000.00
30.00 30.00
30.00 30.00
1,536,714.55 1,473,952.44
55,261.27 62.762.11
1,581,875.82 1,536,714.55
1,591,975.82 1,536,714.55
1,672,005.82 1,616,744 .55

fn line with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxes on income”
components of deferred tax assets and liabifities as on 1st April, 2024 and 31st March, 2025 are given as

01/04/2024 For the Year Reversing 34/03/2025

A. Deferred Tax Assets

a. Gratuily Provision 3,862.47 3,441.92 - 7,304.39

b. Prov. For Leave Encashment 828.77 1,061.72 - 1,890.50

c. Prov. For Bonus {Good work reward) 957.62 - 42,42 915,20
Total (A) 5,648.86 4.503.64 42.42 10,110.08
B. Deferred Tax Liabilities

a. Depreciation 163,503.52 9,585.14 - 173,088.66
Total (B) 163,503.52 9,585.14 - 173,088.66
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (B-A) 157,854.66 5,081.50 -42.42 162,978.58

Deferred tax asset has been recognised and carried forward since there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient

future taxable income shall be available against which the same can be realised.

6. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Others

Security Deposit
a. Security Deposits

V2

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
89.405.00 89,420.00
89,405.00 89,420.00




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

31/03/2025 31/0312024
Provision for Employee Benefits Amount Amount
a. Gratuity 23,904.89 21,215.49
b. Leave Encashment (Hotel) 5,613.64 5,376.37
29,518.54 26,591.86
8. TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/20624
Amount Amount
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 3,520.22
{refer note 41)
Totai outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 23,860.78 22,509.08
small enterprises (refer note below)
23,960.78 26,029.31
Particulars(Qutstanding from invoice date 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
(i) MSME
Less than 1 year - 3,520.22
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 vears - .
- 3.,520.22
(i) Others
Less than 1 year 23,866.63 21,805.45
1-2 years 94,15 703.65
2-3 years ' - -
More than 3 years - -
23,960.78 22,509.09
(iiiy Disputed dues-MSME
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
(iv) Disputed dues-Others
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
23,960.78 26,029.31
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

a. Duties & Taxes Payables
b. Advance Sub-License fee
c. Cther Payables

10. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Total

A. Provision for Employee Benefits

a. Salary & Wages Payable
b. Good-work Reward payable
¢. Provision for Gratuity

d. Provision for Leave Encashment

Total

31/03/2025
Amount
26,537.53
86,997.27
7,579.44

121,114.24

31/03/2025
Amount

5,916.20
3,200.00
1,634.92

996.49

11,747.60

(This space has besn intentionally feft blank)

31/03/2024
Amount
7,667.52
85,267.27

11,261.78
104,186.57

31/03/2024
Amount

5,287.59
3,247 .46
1,457.84

658.01

10,660.90
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 {Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stafed)

13.

14,

DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)

In Iine with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxes on
Income" compenents of deferred tax assets and liabilities as on 1st April, 2024 and 31st March, 2025 are
given as under;

01/04/2024 For the Year Reversing 31/03/2025

A. Deferred Tax Agsets

a. Depreciation 51.43 - 49.33 210
b. Unabsorbed Depreciation c/f 328.05 372,70 - 698.74
Total (A) 377.48 372.70 48,33 700.84

B. Deferred Tax Liabilities
a.  Depreciation - . -

Total (B) _ p R -

Net Deferred Tax Asset (A-B) 377.48 ~372.7C -49.33 700.84

Deferred tax asset has been recognised and carried forward since there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income shall be available against which the same can be realised.

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

31/03/2028 3110312024

Amount Amount

A. Capital Advances

Unsecured, considered good

a. Greater Noida Industrial Development Authority 550.00 550.00

Total (A) 550.00 550.00

B. Other Loans & Advances

Unsecured, considered good

a. Income Tax Refundable 21,366.86 35,653.60

b. Cash Seized by |.T. Department 3,000.00 3,000.00

¢. QOther Advances 163,808.16 100,458.18

Total (B)  188,175.08 _ 139,111.76

Total (A+C) 188,725.03 1398,661.76
Details of loans & advances to directors or other officers, etc,
Other Officers of the Company

Total - -

(This space bas been futentionally feft biunk)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

A, Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
a. Security deposit to service providers
b. Security deposit for let-out properties
c. Security deposit with Government Agencies for utilities

B. Others
a. Staff Advance

16. INVENTORIES

A. Raw Materials & Components (Valued at cost)
Food
Beverage
Operating Equipments

B. Stock-in-trade (Valued at Lower of Cost & NRV)
Debt Funds

Total {A)

(This space bas been intentionally lift biank)

2.9

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
2,408.05 2,406.05
3,120.00 3,120.00
7,227.31 7,227 .31
- 160.00
12,753.36 12,813.36
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
1,852.00 1,400.93
3,384.88 3,347.81
68,158.54 68,729.71
74,383.42 73,478.48
29,309.97 8,660.98
29,3098.97 8,660.98
103,703.38 82,139.44




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 {Contd...)
(Al amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
a} Undisputed trade receivables
~ considered good 36,907.74 29,525.14
- which have significant increase in credit rigk - -
- which are credit impaired - -
b) Disputed trade receivables
- considered good - -
- which have significant increase in credit risk - -
- which are credit impaired - -
36,807.74 29,525.14

Below table represents the trade receivables ageing:
Particulars

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
t.ess than 8 months 32,680.40 24,735.18
6 months - 1 year - -
1-2 years 5.41 4,789.98
2-3 years 4,202.94 -
More than 3 years

36,907.74 29,525.14

{ii} Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful
Less than 6 months - -
6 months - 1 year - -
1-2 years . -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years . - -

36,907.74 29,525.14

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or
jointly with any other person.

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 {Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

31/03/2025 31103/2024
Amount Amount

A. Cash and cash equivalents
a. Balances with banks

Current Account with Scheduled Banks 47,913.15 34,068.71

There are no Earmarked Balances, Margin Money, Security

against borrowings, Guarantees and Other Commitments

included in the balances above (PY Nil)

b. Cash on hand (including Imprest) 4,103.67 3,481.68

Total{A)  52,016.81 37,630.39

B. Other bank balances

a. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 558.32 521.37
months but within 12 months from balance sheet date
Total(B) 558.32 521.37

Total (A+B) 52,675.14 38,051.75

19. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

unsecured, considered good 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
Other Loans & Advances
A. Advance License Fees (NDMC) (Prepaid) 17,172.40 17,172.40
B. Advance (Staff & Consultants) 800.C0 80C.00
C. Prepaid Expenses (Hotel} (Licence fee L3 & L5) 9,382.43 14,425.77
D. Advance for assets 25,465.30 25,465.30

52,820.12 57,863.47

Details of [oans & advances to directors or other officers, etc. : NIL (P.Y. NIL)

20. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

31/03/2025  31/03/2024

Amount Amount
A. Other Taxes Recoverable
i. GST input Available 9,554.30 11,258.89

ii. Dividend Receivable 2.88 -

9,5657.18 11,258.89

(This space bas been futentionally left blank)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 {Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand of Z,_unless otherwise stated)

21, INCOME FROWM OPERATIONS

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount Amount Amount

A. Sale of Products

Shares / Mutual Funds 17,864.47 12,883.77
B. Sale of Services

Facilities and Services Charges for Hote! Complex

Rooms 447 ,756.08 427,628.91

Food & Beverage

Food 83,069.07 86,195.94

Soft Beverage 2.,368.39 2.424.08

Liquor 15,406.80 17,448.55

Banquet Fees 4,315.64 5,488.43

Other Operating Departments 15,336.47 13,982.49

Sub License Fees 110,996.72 £679,249,28 108,239.09 661,407.49
income from Operations {Gross) 697,113.74 B74,301.26
Less: Excise Duty - -
Income from Operations (Net) 897,113.74 674,301.26

22. OTHER INCOME

A. Interest from Bank Deposits 36.96 86.24
B. Interest on Income tax refund 488.64 1,743.27
C. Capital Gain on Sale of Mutual Funds 20,685.32 14,036.67
D. Dividends received on share / Mutual Funds 3.20 4.93
E. Profit on Sale of PMS - 1,193.15
F. Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange Curr. Fluctuation 34,38 20.85
G. Miscellaneous Income 1,353.76 -
H. Commission 385.65 300.50
I. Other Income 204.31 135,17
J. Rent Received {(Mobile Towers at Roof) 287074 1,343.28
K. Rent Received for Warehouse (WHQO) 810.00 -
L. Used Cooking Qi 14.74 26,93
M. Electricity & Water Charges 4,681.71 5,284.18
N. Garbage & Handling Charges 455,00 450.00
O. Scrap sale 26.31 1.31
P. Income From Travel Desk 700.00 600.00
Q. Guest Transport Charges & Tour 1,705.50 1,665.72

Total

23. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Materials Consumed

fnveniory at the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of Raw Material Consumed

Details of Materials Consumed
A, Food
B. Beverages

34,4586.51

474875
46,927.05
51,675.80

5,236.88
46,438.92

42,657.78
3,781.14
46,438.92

* Cost of operating equipments consumed is directly
booked as an expense under its relevant expenditure

head. \f;) 9.

26,902.20

4,532.16
48,934.65
53,466.81

4,748.75
48,718.06

43,801.16
4,816.90
48,718.06



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...}

(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

24. PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

31/03/2025
Amount
38,360.69
38,360.69

Shares / Mutual Funds

25. (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF TRADED GOODS

31/03/2024
Amount
688.6%
698.69

3110312025 31/03/2024 {Increase)/

Amount Amount Decrease

Inventories at the end of the vear 31/03/20256
Shares / Mutuat Funds 29,309.97 8,660.98 -2{,648.99
29,309.97 8,660.88 -20,648.8%

Inventories at the beqginning of the vear 31/03/2024
Shares / Mutual Funds 8,660.98 20,161.90 11,500.92
' 8,660.98 20,161.90 11,500.92
Increase f (Decrease) in Inventories 20,648.99 -11,500.92 32,148.91

(Tbis space b been intentionatly left blank)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of , unfess otherwise stated)

26. COST OF UTILITIES AND HOSPITALITY SERVICES

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
A. Laundry Cost 785.88 904.55
B. Heaith Ciub 194.07 193.59
979.95 1,098.15
27. ENMIPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount Amount Amount
A. Salaries, wages and bonus
a. Salary 75,966.61 74,452.43
b. Bonus 3,268.20 3,247 .46
¢. Exgratia Paid 421,11 389.19
d. Gratuity 3,503.68 83,159.59 7,300.04 85,389.11
B. Directors Remuneration 5,400.00 6,000.00
- C. Contributions to:
a. Provident Fund 5,821.45 5,823.90
b. ESI 215.51 436.13
¢. Other Funds 1,062.24 7,099.19 1,970.18 8,230.22
D. Staff Welfare Expenses 4,347 .61 3,983.36
E. Security Services 5,976.17 4,5699.56
F. Contract Labour 7.453.31 6,938.89
G. Manpower Qutsourced 21,144.81 20,278.00
134,580.98 135,418.14

{This space has been intentionally left blank)



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of &, unless otherwise stated)

28. OTHER EXPENSES

31/03/12025
Amount Amount
a. Power & Fuel 86,793.95
b. Rent 4,650.00
¢. Repairs & Maintenance
i. Plant & Machinery 24,135.13
#. Buildings 83,010.92
iii. Others 31,245.65 138,391.70
d.  Adverising & Sales Promotion 2,017.56
e. AGM & Conference Charges 4.43
f.  Balance Written off -
g. Banqust Expenses 6,187.20
h. Cleaning Supgly 1,286.23
i.  Commission on Rooms 22,248.06
j.  Communication Cost 492 97
K. Credit Card Charges 3,426.84
I.  Director Traveling 4,007.58
m. Guest Supplies 9,680.15
n.  Guest Supply & Relation Expenses 7.,479.61
0. Guests Entertainment & Business Promotion 1,5663.16
p. Insurance 3,628.33
g. Internet Expense 978.00
r.  Laundry & Dry Cleaning 196.47
s. Legal & Professional Fees 81,830.70
t. Licence fee 27,790.38
u. Linen 355.27
v. Local Transportation & Vehicle Maintenance 3,386.689
w. Management Fees -
x. Membership Fees & Subscription 137.39
y. Misc Expenses 742.56
z. Music & Entertainment 420.00
aa. Payment to Auditors 663.00
ab. Postage/Courier/Telegram 33.84
ac. Printing & Stationery 2,300.49
ad. R.O.C. Fee 90.60
ae. Sitting Fees 115.00
af. Uniform 22.47
ag. Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 3,124.90
ah. GST Expenses 2,952.13
ai. STT Paid 0.69
Total 416,999.22
Details of Payment to Auditors
As Auditor:
- Audit Fee 525.00
- Tax Audit Fee 138.00
Total 663.00

31/03/2024

Amount

34,093.59
44,211.58

22,062.60

Amount
80,426.38
2,610.00

100,367.74
1,881.55
3.07
4,779.93
3,376.13
1,616.39
33,548.35
624,66
2,021.17
10,788.52
11,756.25
7,260.91
1,510.03
2,891.80
988.80
226.12
87,748.50
26,155.40
838.46
3,630.73
110.69
56.75
2,606.59
420.00
524.65
36.53
2,507.81
90.89
241.45

391,756.24

385.50
132.15

524.65




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

29. FINANCE COST

31103/2025
Amount

a. interest on Taxes 1.90

b. Bank Charges

Total 44 56

30. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

31/03/2025

Amount
Depreciation on Assets

Total

31. DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Year Ended March 31,

42.66

34,319.34
34,318.34

31/03/2024
Amount
23.60
39.13
62.73

31/03/2024
Amount
34,590,896
34,580.96

Year Ended March 31,

2025 2024
(a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the
company during the year 1,5611.92 745,26
1,511.92 745.26
Yet to be Yet to he
(b) Amount spent during the year on: InCash paidincash InCash  paidin cash
{i} On purposes other than (i} above
- Contribution for Medical Relief to poor
- Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Society 1,5611.85 745.30
Total (A):  1,511.95 - 745.30 -
(c) Contribution paid to trust controlied by the related party
-NA N.A - N.A -
Total (B): - - - -
Total (A+B): 1,511.95 - 745.30 -

(This space bas been Lntentionally left blank)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand of ¥, unless otherwise stated)

32, EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

Total operations for the year

Profit / (loss) after tax

Less: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares
Net profit / {loss) for calculation of Basic EPS

Net profit as above

Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares
Add ; Adjustments for the effects of difutive potential equity shares
Net profit/ (loss) for calculation of Diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic EPS

Effect of dilution:

Convertible preference shares (numbers)

Convertibie bonds (numbers)

Stock option granted under ESOP

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS

(a) Basic
{b) Diluted

31/03/2025 31/03/2024

Amount Amount

55,261.27 62,762.11

55,261.27 62,762.11

55,261.27 62,762.11

55,261.27 62,762.11

38,750,000 39,750,000

39,750,000 39,750,000

1.38 1.58
1.38 1.58

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)

() Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees

moowp

Others (%)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Bills of exchange discounted with banks
Tax demand disputed in appeals

(") The amount represents forfeitable security deposit, which
is not due as per the legal opinion received by the Company.
OMP and Enf(c) have been filed in the matter. Refer to Note

No. 41,
(iy Commitments

A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital accounts and not provided for

B. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid

C. Other commitments

%

31/03/2028 31/03/2024

Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

146,651.40 146,651.40

8,00,00.00 (") 8,00,00.00 (%

5,000.00 5,000.00
Nil Nil
Nil Nil



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
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34. Related Party Disclosure
In accordance with AS-14 "Related Party Disciosures” the names of related parties along with aggregate
amount of transactions and year end balances with them are given as foliows:

A, Related parties and their relationshp
1) Controlling shareholders
The Company is controlled via the shareholding arrangement outlined in Note 3.

2) Key management personnel and their relatives

‘A number of key management personnel, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities
that result in them having control or significant influence over those entities. A number of these
personnel transacted with the Company during the reporting period. The terms and conditions of
the tfransactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more
favourable than those available, or those which might reasonably be expected to be available, in
respect of similar fransactions with non-key management personnel related entities on an arm's
tength basis.

Name of key management personnel, their relatives and entities over which they have control or
significant influence with whom transaction were entered during the year or balance was
outstanding at the balance sheet date are as follows:

a) Key management personnel

- Mr, Kaveen Gupta : Whole Time Director
- Mr. Vipul Gupta : Whole Time Director
- Mrs. Sheel Gupta : Directors
- Mr. Vipin Jain X CFC
- Mrs, Neha Rajput : Company Secretary
-Mr. R C Dubey : Independent Director
b) Retatives of Key Management Personnel
S.P Gupta : Upto 29/09/2024
S.P Gupta {(HUF) : Mr. Kaveen Gupta is Karta of HUF
Kaveen Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Kaveen Gupta is Karta of HUF
Vipul Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Vipul Gupta is Karta of HUF
Mrs. Monisha Gupta : Wife of Mr, Vipul Gupta
Mrs. Babita Gupta : Wife of Mr. Kaveen Gupta

Enterprises where Key Managerial Personnel along with their relatives exercise significant influence:
a} Subsidiary Companies : Sun Aero Limited

b) Associate Companies / Firm : Pushpanjall Trexim Pvt. Limited
Unique LifeStyle Pvt. Ltd,

Key management personnel and relatives compensation
Transaction with related parties

The details of the related-party transactions entered into by the Company for the years ended 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024 are as follows:

Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
A. Expenses
i) Rent 4.650.00 2.610.00
ii) Director Remuneration 5,400.00 6,000.00
i) Sitting Fees 115.00

iv) Salary \r%% 3,712.29 3,283.71



Balances with related parties

All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash. The aggregate vaiue of the
Company's outstanding balances relating to related parties are as follows:

Particulars 3110372025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
A. Advances Given 21,538.18 21,538.16

A2
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34.1 Transactions during the year*

Particulars Key Management Enterprises under the Total
31/03/2025 | 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2025 ! 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 | 31/03/2024
Rent
- Monisha Gupta 750.00 380.00 - - 750.00 380.00
- Vipu! Gupta (HUF) 750.00 380.00 - - 750.00 390.00
- Kaveen Gupta (HUF) 750.00 380.00 - - 750.0C 390.00
- Bahita Gupta 750.00 390.00 - - 750.00 390.00
- S.P. Gupta (HUF) 1,650.00 1,050.00 - - 1.650.00 1,050.00
4,650.00 2,610.00 - - 4,650.00 2,610.00
Director's Remuneration
- Kaveen Gupta 2,700.00 3,300.00 - - 2,700.00 3,300.00
- Vipul Gupta 2,700.00 2,700.00 - - 2,700.00 2,700.00
5,400.00 6,000.00. - - 5,400.00 6,000.00
Sitting Fees
- Sheel Gupta 65.00 - - - 65.00 -
- Mr. R C Dubey 50.00 - - - 50.00 -
115.00 - - - 115.00 -
Salary
- Vipin Jain 2,477 .87 2,092.74 - - 2,477.57 2,092.74
- Neha Rajput 1,234.73 1,170.97 - - 1,234.73 1,170.97
3,712.29 3,263.71 - - 3,712,289 3,263.71

Terms of conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with related parties are made in the ordinary course of business and on terms equivaient to those that
prevail in arm's length transactions. The settlement of outstanding balances as at year end occurs in cash.

34.2 Balance outstanding at the

year end:

Key Management

Enterprises under the
control of key management

Particulars Personnel persconnel (KMP} of entity Total
having joint control over the
Holding Company and their
31/03/2025 | 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2025 | 31/03/2024
Advances Given
Pushpanjali Trexim Limited - - 21,5638.16 21,638.16| 21,538.16{ 21,538.18
- - 21,538.16 21,538.18] 21,538.16] 21,538.16

Mo
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35. Gratuity & Other Post-employment Benefits

The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuity plan. However, every employee who has
completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on departure at 15 days' safary (last drawn basic
salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months on projected unit
method.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss
account and amounis recognized in the balance sheet.

Gratuity

Change in present value of obligation

a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period
b) Acguisition adjustment

¢) Interest cost

d)} Past service cost

&) Current service cost

fy Curtailment cost / {Credit)

g) Settelement cost / (Credit)

h) Benefit paid

iy Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation

}y Present value of obligation as at the end of the period

Changes in fair value of plan assets

a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
b) Acquisition adjustment

c) Expected return on plan agsets

dy Contribution

&) Benefits paid

f) Actuarial gain / {loss) on plan assets

g} Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

Fair vaiue of plan assets

a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
b) Acquistion adjustment

c) Actual return on plan assets

d) Contributions

e) Benefits paid

f) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the peried

g) Funded status

h) Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets

4. Actuarial gain/ losses recognized

a} Actuarial gain / (loss) for the period- obligation

b} Actuarial (gain) / loss for the period- plan assets

¢) Total (gain) / loss for the period

d) Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period

e) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the period
f) Experience Adjustment on Present Value of Cbligation-Loss/(G

W)

31/03/2025 31/03/2024

Amount Amount
22.673.33 16,500.83
1,618.99 1,231.93
1,634.92 1,457.84
-B37.20 -1,127.53
24877 461027
25,538.81 22,673.33
-25,5329.81 -22,673.33
-248.77 -4.610.27
248,77 4,610.27
248.77 4.610.27
-365,12 745,93
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The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 25,539.81
b) Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period -

¢) Funded status / Difference -25,539.81
d) Excess of actual over estimated -

e} Unrecognized actuarial (gains) / losses -

f) Net assets / (liability} recognized in balance sheet -25,538.81
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

a) Current service cost 1,834.92
b) Past service cost -

¢) Interest cost 1,619.99
d) Expected return on plan assets -

e) Curtailment cost / (Credit) -

f) Settiement cost / (credit) -

@) Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the pericd 248,77
h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 3,503.68

Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 25,532.81
b) Present value of obiigation as at the beginning of the period 22,673.33
¢) Benefit paid -

d) Actual return on plan assets -

e) Acquisition adjustment -

f) Expenses recognhized in the statement of profit & losses 3,503.68
Amount for the current period

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 25,539.81
b) Fair value of plan assets -

¢) Surplus / {Deficit) -25,539.81

d} Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (loss) / gain -248.77
e) Experience adjustment on plan assets (loss) / gain -

Movement in the lability recognized in the balance sheet

a) Opening net liability 22,411.23
b) Expense as above 3,503.68
¢} Benefits paid -

d) Actual return on plan assets -

e) Acquisition agjustment -

fy Closing net lability 25.914.90

10. Major categories of plan assets {as percentage of total plan assets)

a} Government of India Securities -
b) State Government Securities -
c) High quality corporate bonds -
) Equity shares of listed companies -
) Property -
Special deposite scheme -
Funds managed by insurer -
Bank balance (For Gratuity) -

S0

oK
— —

22,673.33

-22,673.33

-22,673.33

1,457.84

1,231.83

4,610.27
7,300.04

22,673.33
16,500.83

7,300.04

22,673.33
-22,673.33
-4,610.27

15,111.19
7,300.04

22,411.23

Total -

W
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11. The principal assumption used jn determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are
shown below:

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
a) Discount rate 6.50 7.15
b) Rate of return on Plan Assets - -
c) Salary Escalation £.00 6%
. Leave Encashment 31/03/2625 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 6,034.38 4,584 54
b) Acquisition adjustment - -
c) Interest cost 431,15 343.03
d) Past service cost - -
e} Current service cost 096.48 658.01
f) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - -
g) Settelement cost / (Credit) - -
h) Benefit paid -486.49 -530.44
i} Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation -365.40 969.14
j) Present value of obiigation as at the end of the period 6,610.13 6,034.38

2. Changes in fair value of plan assets
a} Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - -
b) Acquisition adjustment - -
) Expected return on plan assets - -
)
)

Contribution - -
Benefits paid - -
f) Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets - -
g) Fair value of pian assets at the end of the period - -

c
d
e

3. Fair value of plan assets
a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - -
b} Acquistion adjustment - .
¢ Actual return on plan assets - -
d)

Contributions - -
e) Benefits paid - -
f) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - -
g) Funded status -6,610.13 -6,034.38
h) Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets - -

4. Actuarial gain / losses recognized

a) Actuarial gain / (loss) for the period- obligation -365.40 969.14
b) Actuariai (gain) / loss for the period- plan assets - -
¢) Total (gain) / loss for the period -365.40 969.14
d) Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period -365.40 869.14
e} Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the period - -
f) Experience Adjustment on Present Value of Obligation-Loss/(G -516.15 -172.10
8. The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis
a} Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 68,610.13 6,034.38
b} Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period - -
¢y Funded status / Difference -6,610.13 -5,034.38

d) Excess of actual over estimated - -
e) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) / losses - -
f) Net assets / (liability) recognized in‘ balance shest 6,610.13 6,034.38

M
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10.

11,
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Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

a) Current service cost 986.49 658.01
b) Past service cost - -
¢} Interest cost 431.15 343.03
d) Expected return on plan assets - -
e) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - -
f) Settlement cost / {credit) - -
g) Net actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the period -365.40 969.14
h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 1,062.24 1,870.18

Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 5,610.13 6,034.38
b) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 6,034.38 4,594.64
¢) Benefit paid -486.49 -530.44

d) Actual return on plan assets - .
e} Acquisition adjustment - -

f} Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 1,062.24 1,870.18
Amount for the current period

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 6,610.13 £6,034.38
) Fair value of plan assetsas at the end of the period - -
¢) Surplus / {Deficit) -6,610.13 -6,034.38
d} Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (ioss) / gain 365.40 -9069.14

e) Experience adjustment on plan assets {loss) / gain - .

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet

a) Opening net liability 6,034.38 4,594.64
b) Expense as above 1,062.24 1,970.18
¢) Benefits paid -486.49 -530.44

d) Actual return on plan assets - -
e} Acquisition adjustment - -
f) Closing net liability 6,610.13 6,034.38

Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets)

a) Government of India Securities - -
b) State Government Securities - -
¢} High quality corporate bonds - -
d) Eguity shares of listed companies - -
e) Property - -
fy Special deposite scheme - -
g) Funds managed by insurer - -
h} Bank balance (For Gratuity) - -

The principal assumption used in determining lsave encashment obligation for the Company's
plans are shown below:

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
a) Discount rate 6.50 7.16
b) Rate of return on Plan Assets - -
¢) Salary Escalation 6.00 6%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market. Previous year figures have not been given since those are not fully available.

"\ \\\\
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36. Segment Reporting

The business segments of the Company have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard AS-17 on “Segment
Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, taking into account the organisational structure and
different risk and return of these segments. The Company's reportable business segments consists of the following:

a)
b)
c)

Hote! Business
Commercial Centre
Portfolio Management

The accounting policies adopied for segment reporting are in fine with the foltowing additionat policies for segment
reporting :

a) Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship te operating business
activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to enterprise as a whole that cannot be allocated to
& segment on reasonabie hasis, have been disclosed separately under the column “unallocabie”,

b)

Segmeni agsets and fiabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Assets and liabilities that
cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed under the column “unallocable”.
Hotel Commercial Portfolio Total

Particulars Business Business  Management Amount
Segment Revenue
- Revenue including other income 598,885,002 110,996.72  20,688.52 731,670.26
Net Sales / Income from Qperations (A) 589,885.02 110,886.72  20,688.52 731,670.26
Segment Expenses
Allocable Expenses
-Consumption of Stores, Provisions

& Beverages and Purchase of Mutual Funds 65,130.57 - - 65,130.57
-Employee benefit expenses 134,680.98 - - 134,580.98
-Operating { Administration Expenses 416,990.22 - - 418,999.22
~Finance Cost 44,56 - - 44.56
-Expenditure on CSR Activity 1,511.85 - - 1,511,956

(B) 618,267.28 - - 618,267.28

Segment Result {A-B) -18,382.28 110,986.72  20,688.52 113,302.98
Less . Depreciation 34,318.34
Profit before Taxation 78,983.64
Less : Tax Expense for the year 23,722.37
Profit after Taxation 55,261.27
Segment Assets (including Misc.

expenditure and debit balance of

Profit & Loss Alc) 1,426,408.04 1,081,822.51 - 2,508,230.55
Segment Liabilities {inctuding long

term liabilities) 362,594.73 86,130.00 - 438,724.73
Total Carrying Amount of fixed assets 1,328,042.26 - - 1,328,042.26
Total Depreciation on fixed assets 34,103.36 215,98 - 34,319.34

The business segments of the Company viz.,, hotel business and commercial centre are both located at one

geographical place only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicable to the company.
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37. Ratio
[
S. No Particulars Measures | 31/03/2025 311021202 Vari:nce Reason for variance

1 {Current Ratio Times 1.63 1.55 5%iThe improvement in the current ratio
suggesfs better shori-term liquidity due to an
increase in current assets or a decrease in
current liabilities. This indicates a stronger
ability to meet short-term obligations.

2 |Cebt-Equity Ratio Times N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

3 |Debt service| Times N.A. N.A. N.A, N.A.

coverage ratio

4 |Return on equity ratio |Percentage 0.03 0.03 -14%|The decline in the return on equity ratio
indicates a decrease in profitability relative to
sharehoiders' equity due to lower net income.

5 [inventory turnover|Times 0,50 0.56 -10%|The ratic has decreased during the current

ratio year due to decrease in the cost of good sold

6 iTrade receivables|Times 20.99 22.06 -5%{The ratic has decreased during the current

turncver ratio year due to increase in the average irade
receivables during the year as compared to
previous year,

7 |Trade payables|Times 1.88 1.92 -2%|The ratio has decreased during the current

turnover ratio year due to decrease in the credit Purchases
and average payables during the year as
compared to previous year,

8 |Net capital turnoveriTimes 7.06 8.65 -18%|The ratio has degreased during the current

ratio year due to increase in the credit sales and
working capital during the year as compared
to previous year,

g {Net profit ratio Percentage 0.08 6.09 -15%]The ratic has decreased during the current
year due 1o decrease in the profit earned
during the year as compared t¢ previous
year.

10 |Return  on  capital|Percentage 0.03 0.03 0%iThe ratio has increased due to increase in

employed earnings before interest in the current year in
comparison to previous year

11 iReturn on investment |Percentage C% 0% -68%|The ratic has decreased due to decrease in
return on investment,

S. No Ratios Numerator Denominator

1 |Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities

2 |Debt-equity ratio Total debt = Jong ferm horrowings + | Sharenhoider's equity

3 Debt service|Earning for debt service = Net profit|Debt service = Interest payments + principat repayments

coverage ratio before taxes + non-cash operating

4 Return on equity ratio iNet profits after taxes — preference|Average shareholder's equity

dividend {if any)

5 Inventory {urnoveriCost of goods sold Average inventory = (Opening + ¢losing balance / 2)

ratio

6 Trade receivables|Net credit sales Average accounts receivables

furnover ratic

7 Trade payables|Net credit purchases Average trade payables

turnover ratio

8 Net capital turnover{Net sales Average working capital {i.e. total current assets less

ratio total current figbilities)

9 |Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales

10 Return on capital|Earning before interest and taxesiCapital employed = Tangible net worth + fotal debt +

employed (EBIT) deferred tax liability

11 Return on investment |income generated from investments |Time weighted average investments

T4



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand of %, unless otherwise sfated)

38.

39.

40.

Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

In terms of Schedule {ll of the Companies Act, 2013 and notification number GSR 719(e), the company
had requested its various suppliers, who may be registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2008, to furnish the relevant registration certificate under that Act and
cenfirmation regards them being under the said category. From the date of receipt of confirmed details
and information from the said parties the outstanding on account purchase made/services obtained
from such supplers including the disputed amounts due to them, were ascertained and reflected in the
financials as due to Micro & Small Enterprises. The defails in respect of the parties that could be
identified as Micro and Small enterprises as per the MSMED Act on the basis of the information
available with the management are given below:

31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Amount Amount
{iy The principal amount and the interest due therecn (to be shown
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting year.
-Principal amount due o micro and small enterprises - 3,520.22
-interest due on above - -

(iiy The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16
of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made o the supplier beyond the appeinted day during each - -

(iiiy The amount of interest due and payabie for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act 20086. - -

{iv) The amount of further inferest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act 2008, - -

Details of Reqistration of Charges or satisfaction with Reqistrar of Companies
() Presently, the MCA site does not show any charge registered over the movable assets of the
Company including current assets.

EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMS
No exceptional or extra-ordinary items of revenue nature occurred during the year {PY Nil). Hence no
disclosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Wy
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41. Applications filed by the Company and VLS Finance Ltd (a registered shareholder of the Company) u/s 34
of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1996, challenging the Award therein given are pending for
disposal since the year 2015 by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court as on the date of signing of these annual
financial statements. Similarly, the second petition for enforcement of the said Award filed by VLS
Finance Ltd in the Hon'ble Delhi High Court is also pending adjudication as an undertaking has been
giver: by VLS Finance Ltd not to press the execution till the original cross petitions are decided. The
earfier such petition filed by VLS Finance Ltd was dismissed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court on
16/08/2017. The award contained directions to the Company / its directors to refund to VLS Finance Ltd
the forfeited security deposit of Rs. 8 Crores in terms of the MOU dated 11/03/1995 with due interest.
However, as per legal opinion received by the Company no such amount is refundable particularly when
the Hon'ble Company L{aw Board vide its order dated 04/09/2013 has dismissed the Company Petition of
VLS Finance Ltd and decided in favour of the Company.

SF10 has filed a petition u/s 241(2) along with sections 246 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 before
the Hon'ble NCLT against the Company and others which is also pending adjudication. Similarly, SFIO
has also filed a complaint on the same subject as is before the Hon'ble NCLT in the court of the learned
ASJ (Special Court) Dwarka New Delhi, also still pending as on this date.

[n the FIRs filed by the State on the complaints of VLS Finance Ltd. against the Company and others,
charges have been framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings including revisions are still
pending at different stages. Further Company has filed 2 FIRs bearing no. 326/04 & 380/05 against VLS
Finance Ltd in which chargesheets were filed, the challenge to the same by VLS has been dismissed till
Supreme Cceurt vide order dated 25/07/2025.

42. Income-tax provision has been made in the books of account as per legal advice received by the
Company for assessment of various incomings and outgoings.

43, Sundry Debtors / Creditors, if any, are not reconciled due to non-receipt of corresponding statements of

account from them. Necessary adjustments, if any, in the books of account will be made at the time of
reconciliation of the same.,

1SV,
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44. MCA notification dated 24th March 2021 for amendments to Schedule iii disclosures which are not
appiicable:

() Title deed of immovable property not held in the name of company - All properties are held by
company in its own hame.

{ii) Details of Benami Property and its proceedings- Not appilicable as there are no proceedings which
have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1888 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

iy Witlfull defauiter - 'The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institutions.

{iv) Relationship with struck off companies - 'The Company has not entered into any transactions with the
companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 880 of Companies Act,
1956 and do not have any outstanding balance as at the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March

(v) Compiiance with number of layers of companies - 'The Company has complied with the number of
fayers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies {(Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme of arrangement - "The Company has not been approved any
Scheme of Arrangements by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

{vii) Detalls of crypto currency or Virtual currency - 'The Company have not {raded or invested in Crypio
currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

{vii The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to Corporate Sociat Responsibility

{CSR), are applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has constituted a CSR Committee

and is undertaking CSR activities in comgpliance with the requirements of the Act and the rules made
thereunder.

(ix) The company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment, Segments have been
identified taking into account the nature of the products, the differeing risks and returns, the
organisation siructure and internal reporting system as specified by Accounting Standard 17 issued by
the The Institute of Chartered Accountanis of india.

45, All the figures have been rounded off to nearest rupees.

46. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous figures have been regrouped / recast wherever considered necessary.
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